
Board Packet, 4/8/2025 Board Meeting 
 
Live Oak Charter Board Norms 

​​ ●  Be brief and respect others. 
​​ ●  Be prepared for board meetings by asking questions ahead of time and follow the "No​

Surprise Rule." 
​​ ●  Avoid hidden agendas and springing any surprises on other members. 
​​ ●  Focus on an agenda item until it is resolved or until a specified time has been reached to 

resume the resolution process. 
​​ ●  Give your full listening attention. 
​​ ●  Be open to challenge your own beliefs and ideas; Stay open to new ways of doing 

things. 
​​ ●  Success depends on participation – share ideas, ask questions, draw others out. 
​​ ●  Refrain from deriding other individuals’ ideas. Strive to value all opinions. 
​​ ●  Work in the interest of all students. 
​​ ●  Own your mistakes. 
​​ ●  Celebrate success – take time to recognize small steps or progress toward goals. 
​​ ●  Don’t interrupt. 
​​ ●  Express gratitude and appreciation. 

Land Acknowledgement 
We acknowledge that Live Oak Charter School is located on the unceded, ancestral 
land of the Coastal Miwok people, past and present. We honor with gratitude the land 
itself and the generations of Coastal Miwok people who have lovingly stewarded it. We 
thank them for their enduring care and defense of this land, treating it as family. Inspired 
by their example, we aspire to care for this land with respect and responsibility. 
 
Board Verse 
The healthy social life is found when, 
in the mirror of each human soul, 
the whole community finds its reflection, and when, in the community, 
the virtue of each one is living. 
 
Contents of this Packet 
B. Reports           ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​                        ​  
2. Director’s Update ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ p. 2-7  
3. Foundation Report ​​ ​ ​ ​ p. 8-11 
 
C. Consent agenda                                   ​   
1. Board minutes for March 10, 2025, March 13, 2025 p. 12-16 
2. Financials for March 2025​ ​ ​ ​ p. 17-35 
3. IRS Form 990 2023/2024 ​ ​ ​ ​ p. 36-75 
 
D. Review and approval 1. Alliance for Public Waldorf Education​ ​ ​  

a.​ review letter of determination​​ ​ p. 76-77 
b.​ review and approve Sublicense Agreement ​p. 78-83 
c.​ review teacher training plan ​ ​ ​ p. 84-86 

 
E. Discussion 1. Review Charter Implementation Plan​ p. 87-96 

 



Director’s Report
April 8, 2025

2



Where We’ll Go

● Alliance News!
● Field Trip’n & The Play’s [are] 

the Thing(s)
● Run Up to the Year’s End
● Enrollment for VVPW

3



What the Alliance Gave

After more than 20 years of delivering an excellent, Waldorf-flavored education to 
the children of Petaluma (and surrounding areas) it was time for the school to take 
the leap.

I developed a process that included faculty, board and assorted others to speak 
and write to each Alliance principal. With Kim’s ever-generous help, responses 
were typed up and ultimately used in my Membership Self-Study Report. 

I served on a Waldorf visiting committee to learn more about the accreditation 
process, then developed the agenda and process for the Live Oak visit, and the 
led the visiting process from the site perspective. 

With the generous and incisive support of Dr. Beavens, Executive Director of the 
Alliance for Public Waldorf Schools, we were granted status, and may now use the 
term “Public Waldorf”, as in Valley Vista Public Waldorf school.  

4



Run Up To Year’s End

A host of activities approach:

Spring Fair

Butter and Eggs Day Parade (YEH JEN L!!!)

CAASPP Testing (YEH KRISTI!)

Howl (Wail)

Knighting Ceremony (YEH Mr. Winston)

Move Out (YEH as-yet-unnamed person)

5



Plays & Still More Field Trips

Field trips gain in speed and direction– many more 
ahead. Huge kudos to Dori*, who manages these with 
alacrity, attention to detail, and grace.

Class plays are nearly complete. Actors abound. 

6



7



 
 

Fundraising Report Through February 2025 
Total 2024-25 Fundraising Goal: $181,110.00 

2024-2025 projected grant to the school: $124,960.00 
2024-2025 YTD actual grant [to the school]: $107,096.21 

 
The grant amount is equal to 80% of our Net Income for each year, as set in the MOU between 

the Foundation and the School. 
 

Donations Received by Month [Source: Foundation Accounting] 

Month 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2022-2023 Year 2023-2024 Year 2024-25 Year 
July $ 4,233.67 $ 4,561.51 $4,176.53 $2,838.23 $5,790.03 

August $ 12,566.54           $ 7,658.32 
                
$6,997.66 

               
$7,347.72  $7,560.33 

September $ 13,829.33           $ 3,933.77 
                  
$4,746.60            $6,916.95           $10,150.88 

October $ 7,199.23            $7,962.98 
           
$4,212.55 $12,235.87 $17,569.69 

November $ 8,827.93         $23,746.23 
           
$8,131.14 

                  
$6,002.94 $8,392.86 

December $ 17,168.88         $19,597.50         $12,411.66 $8,857.33 $37,078.82 

January $ 13,955.94         $56,795.13 
                
$11,525.19    $10,705.85    $37,791.29 

February $ 13,240.35            $8,327.05 
           
$17,086.49 

    
$11,040.79 $15,446.45 

March $ 11,267.57            $8,878.44        $92,132.20          $9,801.35  
April $ 12,928.62         $14,611.86        $10,882.78      $108,254.38  
May $ 54,223.26        $99,587.56        $10,070.25       $10,759.46  
June $ 12,880.61          $4,624.86          $4,818.54       $10,017.12  
      
Total $ 182,321.93       $260,295.21      $187,191.59    $204,742.99 $139,299.04 

 
Variance From Last Year YTD: +$73,353.36 

Long-Term Capital Fund Ending Balance:  $427,450.30 
 
 

8



 
 

 
Annual Fund Donations Year over Year Graph 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

[Source: Foundation Neon Fundraising Platform and Fund Administrator Notes] 
Note: The discrepancy between the table from the Foundation accounting system and the graph 
is due to the fact that the audited accounting financials are 2 months behind, but the graph is 
based on all received donations up to the most recent complete actual month. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 
 

 
Annual Fund Participation 2024-25 Year by Grade 

 
 

Class participation = number of class families donating/divided by total students in the class 
School Participation = total number of families donating per grade/divided by total students in the school

10



 

 
Annual Fund Participation by Grade End of Year Totals - Historical 

Grade 2019-20  2020-21 2021-22   2023-24 Mar 2024 Mar 2025   
          

K-Rosemary 95%  77% 53% 52% 48% 73%   
K-Redwood 73%  45% 53% 61% 50% 32%   

1st 69%  53% 74% 77% 57% 56%   
2nd 88%  91% 60% 70% 47% 60%   
3rd 75%  75% 74% 77% 73% 60%   
4th 63%  66% 72% 63% 47% 85%   
5th 70%  57% 78% 71% 65% 65%   
6th 81%  72% 56% 76% 59% 77%   
7th 77%  61% 69% 78% 57% 76%   
8th 66%  52% 58% 45% 32% 80%   

          
Totals 75%  65% 65% 68% 52% 67%   

 
 

11



 

LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL 
100 Gnoss Concourse Petaluma, CA 94952 • (707) 762-9020 

 
Minutes for the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Live Oak Charter School 

Handwork Room and Zoom 
 Mar 10, 2025

6:00 pm 
 
School board meetings are being conducted in hybrid format, by virtual teleconference and in 
person. Members of the public who wish to access the Board meeting via virtual teleconference 
may do so at: 
Join Zoom Meeting: https://liveoakcharter-org.zoom.us/j/7077629020  
 
CALL TO ORDER​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​                    6:03pm 
Identify a time-keeper for the meeting 
 
PRESENT 
Kristin Walter, Board Chair 
Robert Bunce, Board Treasurer 
Samantha Sheppard, Secretary  
Justin Lipp, Board Clerk 
Kristina Tank-Crestetto, Board Director 
Nick Russinko, Board Director 
Byron Palmer, Board Director (time keeper for this meeting) 
Steve Bleasdell, Board Director  
Valerie Miller, Board Director  
 
APPROVE THE AGENDA 
SS moved to approve the agenda, BP seconded, all in favor KW, RB, SB, NR, VM, KTC, BP and 
SS 
 
A.​ Public Comment on non-agenda items                                        ​ ​            

No public comment. 
 
B. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 
     No public comment 
 
C. CLOSED SESSION 
1. Gov Code 54957.6 Public Employee Contract (Robert Bunce) 
 
D. REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
     Nothing to report. 
 
E. Topics for consideration for future board meetings                                                     

Please email future agenda items for consideration to director@liveoakcharter.org and 
boardchair@liveoakcharter.org 
 

F. ADJOURNMENT​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ 9:01 pm 

 
LOCS Special Board Meeting​ March 10, 2025​ Page | 1 of 1 

 

12

https://liveoakcharter-org.zoom.us/j/7077629020


 

LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL 
100 Gnoss Concourse Petaluma, CA 94952 • (707) 762-9020 

 
Agenda for the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Live Oak Charter School 

Handwork Room and Zoom 
 Mar 13, 2025

6:00 pm 
 
School board meetings are being conducted in hybrid format, by virtual teleconference and in 
person. Members of the public who wish to access the Board meeting via virtual teleconference 
may do so at: 
 
Join Zoom Meeting: https://liveoakcharter-org.zoom.us/j/7077629020  
 
CALL TO ORDER​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​                    6:02 pm 
 
PRESENT 
Kristin Walter, Board Chair 
Robert Bunce, Board Treasurer 
Samantha Sheppard, Secretary  
Justin Lipp, Board Clerk 
Kristina Tank-Crestetto, Board Director (on Zoom, abstaining from voting) 
Nick Russinko, Board Director 
Byron Palmer, Board Director  
Steve Bleasdell, Board Director  
Valerie Miller, Board Director  
 
APPROVE THE AGENDA 
SS moved to approve the agenda, VM seconded; all in favor KW, RB, SS, NR, SB, BP, and VM 
 
A.​ Public Comment on non-agenda items                                        ​ ​            
No public comment 

 
B. CLOSED SESSION 
No public comment 

1.​ Gov Code 54957; Public Employee Contracts​ ​ ​ ​ ​  
 Report out on closed session. 
Nothing to report.  
 
Public comment on non agenda items 

 appreciates all the work the board is doing.  Heather Bleasdell
Emma  - would like an update on how the principal search is going for the new school. 
 
C. Reports​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​  
This portion of the meeting is set aside for delivery of information to the board/public. Board members may ask clarifying 
questions, but items are intended to be primarily informational. 

1.​ Treasurer Report, Robert Bunce 
a.​ Revenues are a little slow.  We’re at 66% through the year.   

 
LOCS Regular Board Meeting​ March 13, 2025​ Page | 1 of 4 

 

13

mailto:heather@heatherbleasdell.com
https://liveoakcharter-org.zoom.us/j/7077629020


 

b.​ Special ed costs will come in during the summer and can vary widely;  
c.​ Haven’t been billed for water or electricity for this and last year; 
d.​ ADA took a big hit, down 1.6% in February.  
e.​ We project $225K in closing costs; will have $85K or so remaining at the end of the 

year.  
2.​ Foundation Report, Robert Bunce p. 2-5 in packet​  

a.​ Ahead what was projected by 70K 
b.​ Annual giving by class is up approaching pre-covid levels 
c.​ Foundation had a retreat, named new foundation (Foundation for Petaluma Public 

Waldorf. Robert is taking over for Jennifer 
d.​ Need for next year is $400K - the bar is high as there are many needs.  
e.​ New foundation is looking for members; you don’t need to do fundraising.  

3.​ Director’s Update, Kristin Walter, p. 6-12 in packet ​ ​ ​ ​  
a.​ Linda was on the 5th grade field trip and was thrilled to be there. Kids were engaged. 
b.​ Alliance is coming for a third visit. 
c.​ They submitted a report on us; we are looking to get certified soon. 
d.​ Public Waldorf movement - we are becoming a dependent charter, which creates 

stability and diversifies the student body.  ​  
e.​ Community Howl is rescheduled for closer to the end of the year.  
f.​ Butter and egg days parade is coming up; save the date.  
g.​ Enrollment is at 272; looks like the new school enrollment is 475 or more. ​​  

4.​ Communication Report, Valerie Miller 
a.​ Valerie has been focused on Parent Education;  
b.​ Spoke with Bonnie River, who has held every position in Waldorf Education, and has 

focused on parent education. We will likely do a podcast style Waldorf 101, with a 
follow up Q&A session or two. 

c.​ Other parent ed is around transitions and will piggy back on the transitions circles 
done with students. 

d.​ Attended the class coordinator meeting - their outstanding questions were all 
questions we don’t have the answers to yet, and they know that.  

e.​ Asked CCs for input around Parent Ed:  
i.​ Media 
ii.​ Culture of the school 
iii.​ Also liked the ideas of transitions and Waldorf 101 

f.​ Question from RB - where will the parent ed be held next year? Answer: We can use 
any space available in the district that isn’t being used.  

5.​ Dissolution and Closure Proceedings, Samantha Sheppard 
a.​  Notices to parents and creditors are out. 
b.​ Kim has been on top of everything. 

 
Also request from board clerk, get your form 700 done; due April 1.​ ​
​  

D. Consent agenda, packet p. 13-36​  
No public comment.  

1.​ Board minutes for February 13, 2025 
2.​ Financials for February 2025 

RB moved to approve the consent agenda; SB seconded; all in favor RB, SB, BP, VM, NR, KW, 

 
LOCS Regular Board Meeting​ March 13, 2025​ Page | 2 of 4 
 
 

14



 

and SS 
 
E. The board will consider the following for review and approval​  

1.​ Second Interim Budget, John Azzizzi, p. 37-65 
​ John expressed gratitude for the board & the work that has gone in this year and previous 
years.  

a.​ School closure will occur 6/30/25 based on PCS board decision to approve new 
Waldorf charter school (dependent). Certification at the end of this year is no longer 
needed.  

b.​ ADA is down significantly from the first 4 periods of the year; Independent Study 
contracts have dropped & cold and flu season has hit significantly. 

c.​ Expenses forecast increase of $128.4K - salaries and benefits up $46K (stipends, 
home visits ​ ​ ​ ​  

d.​ EDD - we may have $238K in expenses owed, depending on how far back they go. 
e.​ Water and electricity cost estimates are included; we don’t know if we will be billed.  

VM moved to approve the second interim budget; RB seconded; all in favor  RB, SB, BP, VM, NR, 
KW, and SS  
 
F. The board will consider the following for discussion​ ​  

1.​ Discussion around interim bodies and committees, Kristin Walter​  
a.​ Charter Advisory Council (CAC)- we need an interim council to create bylaws and 

requirements for membership. KW, KTC, Faculty, Principal and either SB or BP will 
comprise the interim CAC. New CAC will be formed next year once the new school 
is live. KTC stated that one of the goals should be to make sure the Charter is being 
adhered to. BP stated one of the requirements for membership on the CAC is that 
you need to read the Charter, including history of the school,  

b.​ Family Guild - BP would like to be on this; members of the LO fun committee and 
VV ELAC are collaborating to build. Bylaws will be needed 

c.​ TIDE is opening its’ group up now and is ongoing.  
d.​ ELAC is formed at VV, and will hold elections next year; LO parents are welcome to 

join in the fall. 
e.​ Class Coordinators - VV will reach out to parents over the summer with information. 
f.​ Foundation for Petaluma Public Waldorf - officers will be elected from LO 

community this spring and will invite members from the community in the fall. 
2.​ Move Out Calendar, Kristin Walter​  

a.​ Need to be out of the annex and middle school the day after school ends.  
b.​ This year the district, city and LOCS will do the work. ​ ​ ​ ​  

3.​ Board Orientation for Transition, Kristin Walter​ ​ ​  
a.​ KTC has concerns about checks and balances around communication within the 

board - we are not all in the same spaces and handling different projects; there are 
times we’re not all on the same page. For example, KTC was not on the same page 
about communication around transition  

b.​ Do we need to develop structures for communication? Is there a structure we need 
to put in place around sharing information amongst the board? Is there a 
communication practice or document we can have in place so that we all have the 
same information?  

c.​ KW suggests going back to holding a tea for the community each month. 

 
LOCS Regular Board Meeting​ March 13, 2025​ Page | 3 of 4 
 
 

15



 

d.​ KTC thinks teas will be useful, but she would like more structure around 
communicating within the board 

e.​ VM agrees that a monthly tea is a great idea. Also, if we have an “community pulse” 
document that we share as a board - have it on the agenda. 

f.​ NR suggests that we make the public comment section at the beginning of each 
board meeting more intentional.  

g.​ Action items: Create community pulse ask, create document for use amongst the 
board (if ok to do so per Brown Act); public comment at beginning of each 
meeting=the community’s opportunity to provide their input/taking the community 
pulse; monthly tea to get community questions answered   
​ ​  

G. Board Development ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​  
1.​ Board Assignments; next steps for 25/26, Kristin Walter​ ​ ​  

a.​ See minutes for agenda item F.  
 
H. Topics for consideration for future board meetings                                                     

Please email future agenda items for consideration to director@liveoakcharter.org and 
boardchair@liveoakcharter.org 
 

I. ADJOURNMENT​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ 9:00 PM 
 

 
LOCS Regular Board Meeting​ March 13, 2025​ Page | 4 of 4 
 
 

16



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

Object 1100 - Teachers' Salar    
1,028,920.00 899,365.00 333,177.74 713,952.30 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 Teachers' Salar,Instructi 147,765.04-

32,133.00 35,458.00 11,276.58 24,164.10 62- 1100- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 Teachers' Salar,Instructi 17.32 

64,462.00 192,177.00 14,136.92 30,293.40 62- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 Teachers' Salar,Instructi 147,746.68 

1,125,515.00 1,127,000.00 358,591.24 768,409.80 1.04-Total for Object 1100 and Expense accounts

Object 1130 - Teachers' Sals    
31,000.00 53,900.00 6,204.59 25,114.44 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- 0000 Teachers' Sals,Instructio 22,580.97 

8,475.01 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- 0000 Teachers' Sals,Instructio 8,475.01-

31,000.00 53,900.00 6,204.59 33,589.45 14,105.96 Total for Object 1130 and Expense accounts

Object 1148 - Teacher Substit    
17,000.00 17,000.00 12,956.88 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1148- 000- 0000 Teacher Substit,Instructi 4,043.12 

17,000.00 17,000.00 .00 12,956.88 4,043.12 Total for Object 1148 and Expense accounts

Object 1300 - Cert Suprvsrs'    
45,142.00 45,142.00 13,166.30 31,975.30 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7150- 1300- 000- 0000 Cert Suprvsrs',Superinten .40 

107,582.00 105,330.00 30,721.39 74,609.09 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 1300- 000- 0000 Cert Suprvsrs',School Adm .48-

152,724.00 150,472.00 43,887.69 106,584.39 .08-Total for Object 1300 and Expense accounts

Object 2100 - Instructional A    
70,485.00 64,972.00 20,673.24 44,299.80 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 Instructional A,Instructi 1.04-

79,675.00 73,444.00 31,768.24 44,323.86 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- RTI 1 Instructional A,Instructi 2,648.10-

24,532.00 25,841.00 8,197.70 17,643.50 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 2100- 000- RTI 1 Instructional A,Spec Ed-o .20-

11,046.00 20,412.00 17,577.00 62- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- RTI 1 Instructional A,Instructi 2,835.00 

185,738.00 184,669.00 60,639.18 123,844.16 185.66 Total for Object 2100 and Expense accounts

Object 2130 - Instr Aides - E    
1,000.00 17,330.00 17,079.78 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 000- 0000 Instr Aides - E,Instructi 250.22 

1,000.00 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 000- 0000 Instr Aides - E,Instructi 1,000.00-

1,000.00 17,330.00 .00 18,079.78 749.78-Total for Object 2130 and Expense accounts

Object 2199 - Instr Aides Oth    
2,000.00 10,000.00 6,866.29 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 2199- 000- 0000 Instr Aides Oth,Instructi 3,133.71 

6,000.00 6,000.00 7,958.05 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 2199- 000- RTI 1 Instr Aides Oth,Instructi 1,958.05-

8,000.00 16,000.00 .00 14,824.34 1,175.66 Total for Object 2199 and Expense accounts

Object 2300 - Classifed Direc    
56,731.00 56,731.00 16,546.39 40,184.09 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 2300- 000- CBSC Classifed Direc,Fiscal Se .52 

92,796.00 92,796.00 27,065.64 65,730.84 62- 0000- 0- 7110- 7300- 2300- 000- CBSC Classifed Direc,Fiscal Se .48-

149,527.00 149,527.00 43,612.03 105,914.93 .04 Total for Object 2300 and Expense accounts

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 1 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

17



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

Object 2400 - Clerical & Offi    
40,275.00 40,275.00 11,746.84 28,528.04 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 2400- 000- 0000 Clerical & Offi,Other Gen .12 

227,966.00 227,966.00 67,514.51 160,452.43 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 2400- 000- 0000 Clerical & Offi,School Ad .94-

268,241.00 268,241.00 79,261.35 188,980.47 .82-Total for Object 2400 and Expense accounts

Object 2499 - Clerical&office    
4,000.00 4,000.00 3,059.25 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 2499- 000- 0000 Clerical&office,School Ad 940.75 

4,000.00 4,000.00 .00 3,059.25 940.75 Total for Object 2499 and Expense accounts

Object 2900 - Other Classifie    
21,132.00 36,300.00 11,421.27 24,938.56 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 2900- 000- FOOD Other Classifie,Food Serv 59.83-

21,132.00 36,300.00 11,421.27 24,938.56 59.83-Total for Object 2900 and Expense accounts

Object 2999 - Other Class Sal    
600.00 700.00 654.50 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 2999- 000- 0000 Other Class Sal,Spec Ed-o 45.50 

600.00 700.00 .00 654.50 45.50 Total for Object 2999 and Expense accounts

Object 3101 - Benefits - Strs    
8,622.00 8,622.00 2,514.82 6,107.42 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7150- 3101- 000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,Superinte .24-

169,539.00 173,627.00 52,134.81 114,395.42 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,Instructi 7,096.77 

20,548.00 20,118.00 5,867.75 14,250.25 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3101- 000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,School Ad

6,243.00 6,813.00 2,153.83 4,615.35 62- 1100- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,Instructi 43.82 

1,499.36 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,Instructi 1,499.36-

204,952.00 209,180.00 62,671.21 140,867.80 5,640.99 Total for Object 3101 and Expense accounts

Object 3102 - Benefits - Strs    
9,321.00 1,393.07 3,124.80 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3102- 000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,Instructi 4,803.13 

1,572.62 3,369.90 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3102- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Strs,Instructi 4,942.52-

.00 9,321.00 2,965.69 6,494.70 139.39-Total for Object 3102 and Expense accounts

Object 3201 - Benefits - Pers    
51,859.00 51,859.00 17,967.67 38,502.15 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3201- 000- 0000 Benefits - Pers,Instructi 4,610.82-

16,629.00 16,629.00 3,824.03 8,194.35 62- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3201- 000- 0000 Benefits - Pers,Instructi 4,610.62 

68,488.00 68,488.00 21,791.70 46,696.50 .20-Total for Object 3201 and Expense accounts

Object 3202 - Benefits - Pers    
10,894.00 10,894.00 3,177.58 7,716.98 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3202- 000- 0000 Benefits - Pers,Other Gen .56-

15,346.00 15,346.00 4,475.87 10,869.97 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 3202- 000- CBSC Benefits - Pers,Fiscal Se .16 

19,878.00 16,464.00 3,619.14 8,888.79 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 000- 0000 Benefits - Pers,Instructi 3,956.07 

23,175.00 16,412.00 2,377.27 4,370.95 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Pers,Instructi 9,663.78 

62,747.00 61,705.00 18,262.65 43,944.52 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3202- 000- 0000 Benefits - Pers,School Ad 502.17-

162.00 189.00 177.04 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3202- 000- 0000 Benefits - Pers,Spec Ed-o 11.96 

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 2 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

18



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

Object 3202 - Benefits - Pers     (continued)
6,636.00 6,990.00 2,217.46 4,772.53 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3202- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Pers,Spec Ed-o .01 

25,101.00 25,101.00 7,321.23 17,780.13 62- 0000- 0- 7110- 7300- 3202- 000- CBSC Benefits - Pers,Fiscal Se .36-

2,988.00 2,988.00 4,754.54 62- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Pers,Instructi 1,766.54-

5,716.00 5,802.00 1,818.81 3,999.11 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3202- 000- FOOD Benefits - Pers,Food Serv 15.92-

172,643.00 161,891.00 43,270.01 107,274.56 11,346.43 Total for Object 3202 and Expense accounts

Object 3311 - Benefits - Oasd    
12,253.00 12,253.00 3,951.85 8,841.75 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd,Instructi 540.60-

3,445.00 3,445.00 758.80 1,636.76 62- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd,Instructi 1,049.44 

15,698.00 15,698.00 4,710.65 10,478.51 508.84 Total for Object 3311 and Expense accounts

Object 3312 - Benefits - Oasd    
2,411.00 2,411.00 685.16 1,694.40 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3312- 000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd,Other Gen 31.44 

3,326.00 3,326.00 967.26 2,359.08 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 3312- 000- CBSC Benefits - Oasd,Fiscal Se .34-

3,804.00 4,970.00 829.50 3,145.48 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd,Instructi 995.02 

5,312.00 2,480.00 1,459.15 2,147.55 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Oasd,Instructi 1,126.70-

15,724.00 15,724.00 4,050.62 9,905.31 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3312- 000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd,School Ad 1,768.07 

37.00 43.00 40.58 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3312- 000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd,Spec Ed-o 2.42 

1,521.00 1,602.00 508.27 1,093.92 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3312- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Oasd,Spec Ed-o .19-

5,441.00 5,441.00 1,582.21 3,858.88 62- 0000- 0- 7110- 7300- 3312- 000- CBSC Benefits - Oasd,Fiscal Se .09-

685.00 685.00 1,089.76 62- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Oasd,Instructi 404.76-

1,310.00 2,251.00 708.12 1,546.16 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3312- 000- FOOD Benefits - Oasd,Food Serv 3.28-

62.00 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 000- 0000 Benefits - Oasd,Instructi 62.00-

39,571.00 38,933.00 10,790.29 26,943.12 1,199.59 Total for Object 3312 and Expense accounts

Object 3331 - Benefits - Medi    
647.00 647.00 188.23 458.54 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7150- 3331- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Superinte .23 

15,771.00 16,081.00 4,709.95 10,514.80 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 856.25 

1,542.00 1,509.00 439.25 1,069.93 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3331- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,School Ad .18-

464.00 508.00 143.08 308.48 62- 1100- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 56.44 

806.00 806.00 177.45 382.77 62- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 245.78 

122.88 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 122.88-

19,230.00 19,551.00 5,657.96 12,857.40 1,035.64 Total for Object 3331 and Expense accounts

Object 3332 - Benefits - Medi    
564.00 564.00 160.30 396.30 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3332- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Other Gen 7.40 

778.00 778.00 226.24 551.78 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 3332- 000- CBSC Benefits - Medi,Fiscal Se .02-

890.00 1,162.00 299.81 989.73 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 127.54-

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 3 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

19



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

Object 3332 - Benefits - Medi     (continued)
1,242.00 1,288.00 460.67 758.20 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 69.13 

3,676.00 3,676.00 947.31 2,316.60 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3332- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,School Ad 412.09 

9.00 10.00 9.49 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3332- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Spec Ed-o .51 

356.00 375.00 118.86 255.82 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3332- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Medi,Spec Ed-o .32 

1,273.00 1,273.00 370.02 902.46 62- 0000- 0- 7110- 7300- 3332- 000- CBSC Benefits - Medi,Fiscal Se .52 

160.00 160.00 254.80 62- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 94.80-

306.00 526.00 165.62 361.64 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3332- 000- FOOD Benefits - Medi,Food Serv 1.26-

14.50 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 000- 0000 Benefits - Medi,Instructi 14.50-

9,254.00 9,812.00 2,748.83 6,811.32 251.85 Total for Object 3332 and Expense accounts

Object 3401 - H & W Benefits    
5,172.00 5,172.00 1,507.38 3,660.77 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7150- 3401- 000- 0000 H & W Benefits,Superinten 3.85 

182,062.00 171,183.00 55,646.29 115,615.70 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3401- 000- 0000 H & W Benefits,Instructio 78.99-

12,066.00 12,066.00 3,517.29 8,541.88 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3401- 000- 0000 H & W Benefits,School Adm 6.83 

6,205.00 6,205.00 1,947.26 4,172.59 62- 1100- 0- 1110- 1000- 3401- 000- 0000 H & W Benefits,Instructio 85.15 

8,245.00 8,245.00 2,628.92 5,633.38 62- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3401- 000- 0000 H & W Benefits,Instructio 17.30-

213,750.00 202,871.00 65,247.14 137,624.32 .46-Total for Object 3401 and Expense accounts

Object 3402 - H & W Benefits    
8,635.00 8,635.00 2,517.55 6,114.02 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3402- 000- 0000 H & W Benefits,Other Gene 3.43 

6,450.00 6,450.00 1,885.17 4,578.27 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 3402- 000- CBSC H & W Benefits,Fiscal Ser 13.44-

13,099.00 13,099.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3402- 000- 0000 H & W Benefits,Instructio 13,099.00 

21,893.00 20,245.00 9,948.96 23,429.17 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3402- 000- 0000 H & W Benefits,School Adm 13,133.13-

67.00 67.00 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3402- 000- RTI 1 H & W Benefits,Spec Ed-ot 67.00 

10,549.00 10,549.00 3,083.50 7,488.50 62- 0000- 0- 7110- 7300- 3402- 000- CBSC H & W Benefits,Fiscal Ser 23.00-

60,693.00 59,045.00 17,435.18 41,609.96 .14-Total for Object 3402 and Expense accounts

Object 3501 - Benefits - Sui    
22.00 22.00 6.44 15.79 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7150- 3501- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Superinten .23-

1,044.00 1,055.00 162.33 2,197.07 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 1,304.40-

53.00 52.00 15.19 36.95 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3501- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,School Adm .14-

16.00 18.00 4.90 10.58 62- 1100- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 2.52 

28.00 28.00 6.09 13.17 62- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 8.74 

4.19 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 4.19-

1,163.00 1,175.00 194.95 2,277.75 1,297.70-Total for Object 3501 and Expense accounts

Object 3502 - Benefits - Sui    
19.00 19.00 5.53 13.67 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3502- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Other Gene .20-

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 4 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

20



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

Object 3502 - Benefits - Sui     (continued)
27.00 27.00 7.77 18.99 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 3502- 000- CBSC Benefits - Sui,Fiscal Ser .24 

31.00 40.00 10.29 34.05 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 4.34-

43.00 44.00 15.89 26.16 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 1.95 

126.00 127.00 32.69 79.97 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3502- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,School Adm 14.34 

.32 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3502- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Spec Ed-ot .32-

12.00 13.00 4.13 8.88 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3502- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Sui,Spec Ed-ot .01-

44.00 44.00 12.81 31.17 62- 0000- 0- 7110- 7300- 3502- 000- CBSC Benefits - Sui,Fiscal Ser .02 

6.00 6.00 8.82 62- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Sui,Instructio 2.82-

11.00 18.00 5.74 12.51 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3502- 000- FOOD Benefits - Sui,Food Servi .25-

.50 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 000- 0000 Benefits - Sui,Instructio .50-

319.00 338.00 94.85 235.04 8.11 Total for Object 3502 and Expense accounts

Object 3601 - Benefits - Wcom    
469.00 469.00 136.92 332.52 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7150- 3601- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Superinte .44-

11,225.00 11,450.00 3,529.61 7,821.15 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 99.24 

1,120.00 1,096.00 319.48 775.88 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3601- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,School Ad .64 

340.00 371.00 117.25 251.25 62- 1100- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 2.50 

639.00 639.00 147.00 315.00 62- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 177.00 

88.13 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 88.13-

13,793.00 14,025.00 4,250.26 9,583.93 190.81 Total for Object 3601 and Expense accounts

Object 3602 - Benefits - Wcom    
419.00 419.00 122.22 296.80 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3602- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Other Gen .02-

590.00 590.00 172.13 418.03 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 3602- 000- CBSC Benefits - Wcom,Fiscal Se .16-

764.00 960.00 215.04 709.81 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 35.15 

891.00 924.00 330.40 543.78 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 49.82 

2,413.00 2,413.00 702.10 1,700.39 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 3602- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,School Ad 10.51 

6.00 7.00 6.82 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3602- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Spec Ed-o .18 

255.00 269.00 85.26 183.50 62- 0000- 0- 5760- 1190- 3602- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Wcom,Spec Ed-o .24 

965.00 965.00 281.47 683.58 62- 0000- 0- 7110- 7300- 3602- 000- CBSC Benefits - Wcom,Fiscal Se .05-

115.00 115.00 182.84 62- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 000- RTI 1 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 67.84-

220.00 378.00 118.79 259.39 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3602- 000- FOOD Benefits - Wcom,Food Serv .18-

10.40 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 000- 0000 Benefits - Wcom,Instructi 10.40-

6,638.00 7,040.00 2,027.41 4,995.34 17.25 Total for Object 3602 and Expense accounts

Object 4110 - Textbooks    
3,200.00 1,600.00 1,415.54 62- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4110- 000- 0000 Textbooks,Instruction,Reg 184.46 

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 5 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

21



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

3,200.00 1,600.00 .00 1,415.54 184.46 Total for Object 4110 and Expense accounts

Object 4210 - Books Other Tha    
200.00 200.00 99.76 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4210- 000- 0000 Books Other Tha,Instructi 100.24 

1,000.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4210- 000- LI BR Books Other Tha,Instructi

1,200.00 200.00 .00 99.76 100.24 Total for Object 4210 and Expense accounts

Object 4300 - Materials & Sup    
2,000.00-62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 000- 3RD1 Materials & Sup,Instructi 2,000.00-

2,500.00 4,500.00 2,277.84 62- 9038- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 000- 0000 Materials & Sup,Instructi 2,222.16 

2,500.00 2,500.00 .00 2,277.84 222.16 Total for Object 4300 and Expense accounts

Object 4310 - Instructional M    
1,875.00 1,875.00 1,323.57 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 5t h1 Instructional M,Instructi 551.43 

3,068.00- 8,394.00-62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- BUDG Instructional M,Instructi 8,394.00-

765.00 765.00 16.88 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- GAME Instructional M,Instructi 748.12 

4,570.00 4,570.00 4,267.14 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- HAND Instructional M,Instructi 302.86 

600.00 600.00 718.42 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- MATH Instructional M,Instructi 118.42-

4,875.00 4,875.00 1,953.32 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- MI DD Instructional M,Instructi 2,921.68 

500.00 500.00 731.87 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- RSP1 Instructional M,Instructi 231.87-

400.00 3,000.00 2,696.88 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- RTI 1 Instructional M,Instructi 303.12 

2,825.00 2,825.00 2,432.55 62- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 1s t 1 Instructional M,Instructi 392.45 

1,875.00 1,875.00 2,021.26 62- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 2nd1 Instructional M,Instructi 146.26-

1,875.00 1,875.00 1,437.82 62- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 3RD1 Instructional M,Instructi 437.18 

1,875.00 1,875.00 1,944.94 62- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 4TH1 Instructional M,Instructi 69.94-

3,068.00 8,394.00 62- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- BUDG Instructional M,Instructi 8,394.00 

1,875.00 1,875.00 1,922.47 62- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- KND1 Instructional M,Instructi 47.47-

1,875.00 1,875.00 947.76 62- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- k nd2 Instructional M,Instructi 927.24 

25,785.00 28,385.00 .00 22,414.88 5,970.12 Total for Object 4310 and Expense accounts

Object 4340 - Computer Sftwar    
230.50 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4340- 000- 0000 Computer Sftwar,Instructi 230.50-

425.00 525.00 220.50 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 4340- 000- 0000 Computer Sftwar,School Ad 304.50 

425.00 525.00 .00 451.00 74.00 Total for Object 4340 and Expense accounts

Object 4350 - Office Supplies    
5,000.00 5,000.00 2,573.76 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 4350- 000- 0000 Office Supplies,School Ad 2,426.24 

5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 2,573.76 2,426.24 Total for Object 4350 and Expense accounts

Object 4370 - Custodial Suppl    
7,000.00 7,000.00 5,535.55 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 4370- 000- J ANI Custodial Suppl,Operation 1,464.45 

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 6 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

22



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

7,000.00 7,000.00 .00 5,535.55 1,464.45 Total for Object 4370 and Expense accounts

Object 4390 - Other Supplies    
800.00 800.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4390- 000- 0000 Other Supplies,Instructio 800.00 

500.00 500.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4390- 000- GARD Other Supplies,Instructio 500.00 

1,100.00 1,100.00 86.30 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4390- 000- GRAD Other Supplies,Instructio 1,013.70 

2,500.00 2,500.00 1,378.03 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4390- 000- K1SN Other Supplies,Instructio 1,121.97 

2,500.00 2,500.00 1,862.24 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4390- 000- K2SN Other Supplies,Instructio 637.76 

5,785.00 1,555.98 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4390- 000- TRI P Other Supplies,Instructio 4,229.02 

500.00 500.00 132.51 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2420- 4390- 000- LI BR Other Supplies,Instructio 367.49 

200.00 200.00 464.40 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 4390- 000- 0000 Other Supplies,School Adm 264.40-

4,568.00 4,568.00 2,952.50 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 4390- 000- COPY Other Supplies,School Adm 1,615.50 

1,500.00 1,500.00 1,194.78 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 4390- 000- FEST Other Supplies,School Adm 305.22 

1,550.00 1,550.00 98.08 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 4390- 000- 0000 Other Supplies,Operations 1,451.92 

6,000.00 10,000.00 6,810.24 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 4390- 000- MNTN Other Supplies,Operations 3,189.76 

350.00 350.00 543.19 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 4390- 000- FOOD Other Supplies,Food Servi 193.19-

5,785.00 1,018.22 62- 9038- 0- 1110- 1000- 4390- 000- TRI P Other Supplies,Instructio 1,018.22-

1,000.00 1,000.00 953.15 62- 9090- 0- 1110- 8300- 4390- 000- 0000 Other Supplies,Security,R 46.85 

28,853.00 32,853.00 .00 19,049.62 13,803.38 Total for Object 4390 and Expense accounts

Object 4400 - Inventory Suppl    
4,500.00 9,500.00 6,019.94 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4400- 000- 0000 Inventory Suppl,Instructi 3,480.06 

3,475.25 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 4400- 000- 0000 Inventory Suppl,Operation 3,475.25-

4,500.00 9,500.00 .00 9,495.19 4.81 Total for Object 4400 and Expense accounts

Object 4710 - Food Purchases    
2,000.00 11,000.00 5,551.12 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 4710- 000- FOOD Food Purchases,Food Servi 5,448.88 

2,000.00 11,000.00 .00 5,551.12 5,448.88 Total for Object 4710 and Expense accounts

Object 5200 - Travel & Confer    
250.00 388.00 387.82 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7300- 5200- 000- CBSC Travel & Confer,Fiscal Se .18 

1,750.00 3,600.00 3,600.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 000- 0000 Travel & Confer,Instructi

600.00 169.40 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 000- TRI P Travel & Confer,Instructi 430.60 

600.00 75.00 75.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 5200- 000- 0000 Travel & Confer,School Ad

650.00 721.00 720.25 62- 0000- 0- 7110- 7300- 5200- 000- CBSC Travel & Confer,Fiscal Se .75 

20,000.00 20,000.00 15,396.50 62- 6266- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 000- 0000 Travel & Confer,Instructi 4,603.50 

600.00 556.94 62- 9038- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 000- TRI P Travel & Confer,Instructi 556.94-

23,850.00 25,384.00 .00 20,905.91 4,478.09 Total for Object 5200 and Expense accounts

Object 5300 - Dues & Membersh    

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 7 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

23



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

Object 5300 - Dues & Membersh    
3,500.00 4,900.00 4,830.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 5300- 000- 0000 Dues & Membersh,School Ad 70.00 

3,500.00 4,900.00 .00 4,830.00 70.00 Total for Object 5300 and Expense accounts

Object 5450 - Other Insurance    
31,634.00 29,414.00 29,414.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 5450- 000- 0000 Other Insurance,School Ad

31,634.00 29,414.00 .00 29,414.00 .00 Total for Object 5450 and Expense accounts

Object 5520 - Electricity    
49,450.00 49,450.00 15,975.13 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5520- 000- 0000 Electricity,Operations,Re 33,474.87 

49,450.00 49,450.00 .00 15,975.13 33,474.87 Total for Object 5520 and Expense accounts

Object 5530 - Water    
23,000.00 23,000.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5530- 000- 0000 Water,Operations,Regular 23,000.00 

23,000.00 23,000.00 .00 .00 23,000.00 Total for Object 5530 and Expense accounts

Object 5550 - Laundry And Cle    
35,460.00 35,460.00 19,165.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5550- 000- J ANI Laundry And Cle,Operation 16,295.00 

35,460.00 35,460.00 .00 19,165.00 16,295.00 Total for Object 5550 and Expense accounts

Object 5560 - Waste Disposal    
9,500.00 9,500.00 7,397.46 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5560- 000- 0000 Waste Disposal,Operations 2,102.54 

9,500.00 9,500.00 .00 7,397.46 2,102.54 Total for Object 5560 and Expense accounts

Object 5570 - Pest Control    
2,750.00 2,750.00 2,370.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5570- 000- 0000 Pest Control,Operations,R 380.00 

2,750.00 2,750.00 .00 2,370.00 380.00 Total for Object 5570 and Expense accounts

Object 5590 - Other Housekeep    
12,000.00 12,000.00 6,047.50 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5590- 000- 0000 Other Housekeep,Operation 5,952.50 

12,000.00 12,000.00 .00 6,047.50 5,952.50 Total for Object 5590 and Expense accounts

Object 5600 - Rentals And Lea    
7,500.00 7,500.00 1,152.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5600- 000- 0000 Rentals And Lea,Operation 6,348.00 

9,421.00 9,421.00 6,492.52 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5600- 000- COPY Rentals And Lea,Operation 2,928.48 

93,240.00 123,085.00 101,851.13 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5600- 000- FAI R Rentals And Lea,Operation 21,233.87 

18,109.00 19,320.00 15,344.46 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5600- 000- PORT Rentals And Lea,Operation 3,975.54 

12,720.00 62- 2600- 0- 8500- 5900- 5600- 000- CARE Rentals And Lea,Other Com

140,990.00 159,326.00 .00 124,840.11 34,485.89 Total for Object 5600 and Expense accounts

Object 5630 - Repairs    
20,000.00 2,500.00 613.69 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5630- 000- ROP1 Repairs,Operations,Regula 1,886.31 

20,000.00 2,500.00 .00 613.69 1,886.31 Total for Object 5630 and Expense accounts

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 8 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

24



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

Object 5632 - Copier Repairs    
18.77 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5632- 000- COPY Copier Repairs,Operations 18.77-

.00 .00 .00 18.77 18.77-Total for Object 5632 and Expense accounts

Object 5800 - Other Svcs & Op    
360.00 750.00 705.37 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7100- 5800- 000- FEES Other Svcs & Op,Board & S 44.63 

29,562.00 29,027.00 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7600- 5800- 000- DI ST Other Svcs & Op,All Other 29,027.00 

1,000.00 500.00 297.88 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 000- 0000 Other Svcs & Op,Instructi 202.12 

785.00 14,400.00 8,494.65 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 000- TRI P Other Svcs & Op,Instructi 5,905.35 

1,500.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5800- 000- J ANI Other Svcs & Op,Operation 1,500.00-

300.00 300.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8300- 5800- 000- 0000 Other Svcs & Op,Security, 300.00 

56,000.00 75,000.00 54,394.00 62- 2600- 0- 8500- 5900- 5800- 000- CARE Other Svcs & Op,Other Com 20,606.00 

18,000.00 18,000.00 3,542.00 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 5800- 000- FOOD Other Svcs & Op,Food Serv 14,458.00 

396.00 396.00 62- 9033- 0- 8500- 5900- 5800- 000- CARE Other Svcs & Op,Other Com

13,615.00 1,481.00 62- 9038- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 000- TRI P Other Svcs & Op,Instructi 1,481.00-

250.00 250.00 132.00 62- 9090- 0- 1110- 8300- 5800- 000- 0000 Other Svcs & Op,Security, 118.00 

119,872.00 138,623.00 .00 70,942.90 67,680.10 Total for Object 5800 and Expense accounts

Object 5817 - Scoe Data Proce    
11,681.00 11,681.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5817- 000- 0000 Scoe Data Proce,Instructi 11,681.00 

11,681.00 11,681.00 .00 .00 11,681.00 Total for Object 5817 and Expense accounts

Object 5821 - Audit Costs    
22,000.00 23,100.00 23,100.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 7191- 5821- 000- 0000 Audit Costs,External Fina

22,000.00 23,100.00 .00 23,100.00 .00 Total for Object 5821 and Expense accounts

Object 5823 - Legal Costs    
5,000.00 18,000.00 13,507.50 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 5823- 000- 0000 Legal Costs,School Admini 4,492.50 

5,000.00 18,000.00 .00 13,507.50 4,492.50 Total for Object 5823 and Expense accounts

Object 5825 - Advertisement (    
500.00 500.00 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 5825- 000- 0000 Advertisement (,Other Gen 500.00 

1,000.00 1,000.00 705.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 5825- 000- 0000 Advertisement (,School Ad 295.00 

1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 705.00 795.00 Total for Object 5825 and Expense accounts

Object 5830 - Professional/co    
1,000.00 17,100.00 17,100.00 62- 0000- 0- 1705- 1000- 5830- 000- 0000 Professional/co,Instructi

1,000.00 17,100.00 .00 17,100.00 .00 Total for Object 5830 and Expense accounts

Object 5860 - Other Employmen    
500.00 500.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 5860- 000- 0000 Other Employmen,School Ad 500.00 

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 9 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

25



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Description

500.00 500.00 .00 .00 500.00 Total for Object 5860 and Expense accounts

Object 5862 - Fingerprinting    
2,000.00 2,000.00 1,197.00 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 5862- 000- 0000 Fingerprinting,School Adm 803.00 

2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 1,197.00 803.00 Total for Object 5862 and Expense accounts

Object 5911 - Telephone    
3,750.00 3,750.00 3,239.37 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8200- 5911- 000- 0000 Telephone,Operations,Regu 510.63 

3,750.00 3,750.00 .00 3,239.37 510.63 Total for Object 5911 and Expense accounts

Object 5940 - Internet    
20,070.00 20,070.00 13,403.52 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 5940- 000- 0000 Internet,School Administ, 6,666.48 

20,070.00 20,070.00 .00 13,403.52 6,666.48 Total for Object 5940 and Expense accounts

Object 5950 - Postage    
1,100.00 1,500.00 1,557.17 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 2700- 5950- 000- 0000 Postage,School Administ,R 57.17-

1,100.00 1,500.00 .00 1,557.17 57.17-Total for Object 5950 and Expense accounts

Object 6900 - Depr Exp    
1,081.00 2,883.00 720.80 62- 0000- 0- 1110- 8400- 6900- 000- 0000 Depr Exp,Oth Plant Maint, 2,162.20 

1,081.00 2,883.00 .00 720.80 2,162.20 Total for Object 6900 and Expense accounts

Object 7141 - Oth Tuitn, Exce    
207,480.00 201,971.00 62- 0000- 0- 5001- 9200- 7141- 000- 0000 Oth Tuitn, Exce,Transfers 201,971.00 

11,872.00 62- 6546- 0- 5001- 9200- 7141- 000- 0000 Oth Tuitn, Exce,Transfers 11,872.00 

207,480.00 213,843.00 .00 .00 213,843.00 Total for Object 7141 and Expense accounts

Object 7282 - Trnsfrs Apporti    
6,400.00 6,090.00 62- 6546- 0- 5001- 9200- 7282- 000- 0000 Trnsfrs Apporti,Transfers 310.00 

.00 6,400.00 .00 6,090.00 310.00 Total for Object 7282 and Expense accounts

Object 7310 - Dir Supp/indr C    
1,245.00-62- 0000- 0- 0000- 7210- 7310- 000- 0000 Dir Supp/indr C,General A 1,245.00 

1,245.00 62- 3010- 0- 1110- 7210- 7310- 000- 0000 Dir Supp/indr C,General A 1,245.00-

.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 Total for Object 7310 and Expense accounts

Object 8011 - Revenue Limit S    

1,163,636.00 1,119,468.00 793,991.00 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8011- 000- 0000 Revenue Limit S,Unrestric 325,477.00 

793,991.00 1,119,468.00 1,163,636.00 325,477.00 Total for Object 8011 and Revenue accounts

Object 8012 - EPA    

94,254.00 221,969.00 7,658.00 62- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 EPA,EPA 214,311.00 

7,658.00 221,969.00 94,254.00 214,311.00 Total for Object 8012 and Revenue accounts

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 10 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

26



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

RevenueDescriptionFD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Object 8019 - Revenue Limit S    

121,692.00-62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8019- 000- 0000 Revenue Limit S,Unrestric 121,692.00 

123,309.00 62- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8019- 000- 0000 Revenue Limit S,EPA 123,309.00-

1,617.00 .00 .00 1,617.00-Total for Object 8019 and Revenue accounts

Object 8096 - In Lieu Of Prop    

1,698,350.00 1,561,270.00 1,181,460.00 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8096- 000- 0000 In Lieu Of Prop,Unrestric 379,810.00 

1,615.00-62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8096- 000- PY00 In Lieu Of Prop,Unrestric 1,615.00 

1,179,845.00 1,561,270.00 1,698,350.00 381,425.00 Total for Object 8096 and Revenue accounts

Object 8290 - All Other Feder    

15,000.00 24,366.00 25,118.00 62- 3010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 All Other Feder,Title I 752.00-

25,118.00 24,366.00 15,000.00 752.00-Total for Object 8290 and Revenue accounts

Object 8550 - Mandated Cost R    

4,742.00 4,742.00 4,742.00 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8550- 000- 0000 Mandated Cost R,Unrestric

4,742.00 4,742.00 4,742.00 .00 Total for Object 8550 and Revenue accounts

Object 8560 - State Lottery R    

45,401.00 49,043.00 16,363.68 62- 1100- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 State Lottery R,State Lot 32,679.32 

330.00 330.47 62- 1100- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- PY00 State Lottery R,State Lot .47-

18,468.00 21,055.00 563.36 62- 6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 State Lottery R,Lottery - 20,491.64 

1,139.00 1,138.99 62- 6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- PY00 State Lottery R,Lottery - .01 

18,396.50 71,567.00 63,869.00 53,170.50 Total for Object 8560 and Revenue accounts

Object 8590 - All Other State    

202.00 762.00 762.00 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,Unrestric

68,720.00 68,720.00 54,717.00 62- 2600- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,ELO Progr 14,003.00 

20,000.00 20,000.00 25,703.83 62- 6266- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,Ed Effect 5,703.83-

18,272.00 14,983.00 62- 6546- 0- 5001- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,Mental He 3,289.00 

23,855.00 62- 6770- 7- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 All Other State,Arts & Mu 23,855.00-

1,693.00 62- 7810- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- LSPD All Other State,Other Sta 1,693.00-

121,713.83 107,754.00 88,922.00 13,959.83-Total for Object 8590 and Revenue accounts

Object 8660 - Interest    

18,000.00 25,000.00 20,135.57 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8660- 000- 0000 Interest,Unrestricted/no 4,864.43 

20,135.57 25,000.00 18,000.00 4,864.43 Total for Object 8660 and Revenue accounts

Object 8677 - Interagency Svc    

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 11 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

27



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

RevenueDescriptionFD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT
Account 

Balance

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Object 8677 - Interagency Svc    

136,183.00 136,183.00 79,341.50 62- 0000- 0- 7110- 0000- 8677- 000- CBSC Interagency Svc,Unrestric 56,841.50 

79,341.50 136,183.00 136,183.00 56,841.50 Total for Object 8677 and Revenue accounts

Object 8699 - All Other Local    

10,000.00 15,000.00 14,362.56 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 000- 0000 All Other Local,Unrestric 637.44 

104,000.00 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 000- FUND All Other Local,Unrestric

600.00 600.00 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 000- MUSC All Other Local,Unrestric

2,500.00 2,500.00 1,330.00 62- 9038- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 000- 0000 All Other Local,Grants - 1,170.00 

20,000.00 62- 9038- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 000- FUND All Other Local,Grants -

537.50 62- 9038- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 000- PEFx All Other Local,Grants - 537.50-

1,250.00 1,250.00 62- 9090- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 000- 0000 All Other Local,Resig Saf 1,250.00 

16,830.06 19,350.00 137,750.00 2,519.94 Total for Object 8699 and Revenue accounts

Object 8980 - Contribute From    

16,779.00- 81,301.00-62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 000- 0000 Contribute From,Unrestric 81,301.00-

6,280.00 62- 2600- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 000- 0000 Contribute From,ELO Progr 6,280.00 

49,045.00 74,625.00 62- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 000- 0000 Contribute From,Child Nut 74,625.00 

32,266.00-62- 6266- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 000- 0000 Contribute From,Ed Effect

396.00 62- 9033- 0- 0000- 0000- 8980- 000- 0000 Contribute From,After Sch 396.00 

.00 .00 .00 .00 Total for Object 8980 and Revenue accounts

Object 9720 - Reserve For Enc    
847,473.48 62-     -  -     -     - 9720-    - Reserve For Enc, 847,473.48 

847,473.48 .00 .00 .00 847,473.48 Total for Object 9720 and Ending Balance accounts

Object 9790 - Undesignated/un    
540,954.00 366,383.00 62- 0000- 0-     -     - 9790-    - Undesignated/un,Unrestric

.00 540,954.00 366,383.00 .00 .00 Total for Object 9790 and Ending Balance accounts

Object 9791 - Beginning Balan    
708,282.00 784,548.00 102,743.99 887,292.18 62- 0000- 0-     -     - 9791-    - Beginning Balan,Unrestric 784,548.19 

43,870.00 43,870.00 62- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 9791- 000- 0000 Beginning Balan,Unrestric 43,870.00 

32,266.00 47,932.91 47,932.91 62- 6266- 0-     -     - 9791-    - Beginning Balan,Ed Effect

152,633.18 152,633.18 62- 6762- 0-     -     - 9791-    - Beginning Balan,Arts Musi

2,000.00 2,000.00 62- 9038- 0-     -     - 9791-    - Beginning Balan,Grants - 2,000.00 

1,133,728.27 740,548.00 830,418.00 303,310.08 830,418.19 Total for Object 9791 and Starting Balance accounts

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 12 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

28



Fiscal05 Account Summary-Balance 

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through 06/30/2025

FD- RSRC- Y- GOAL- FUNC- OBJT- SCH- MGMT Description
Adopted

Budget

Revised

Budget
Debit Credit

Account 

Balance

Actual

Budgeted

= Calculated Ending Balance- Expenditures- Encumbrances+ RevenuesStarting Balance

830,418.19 

830,418.00 3,291,669.00 

2,269,388.46 847,473.48 

3,755,704.00 

2,408,591.85 

366,383.00 

156,258.68-

Total for Org 012 - Live Oak Charter School

Selection

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:10AM 

Page 13 of 13

Grouped by Account Type, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 12, Online/Offline = N, Period = 12, UnPosted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = 

N, Restricted Accts? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

012 - Live Oak Charter School

29



Financial StatementFiscal13a

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through March 2025

Object Description
Adopted

Budget
Revised 
Budget Balance

% 
Rcvd

 
Revenue

Revenue Detail

LCFF Revenue Sources

8011 Revenue Limit St Aid-curr Year 1,163,636.00 1,119,468.00 325,477.00 70.93793,991.00 

8012 EPA State Aid 94,254.00 221,969.00 214,311.00 3.457,658.00 

8019 Revenue Limit St Aid-prior Yrs 1,617.00- NO BDGT1,617.00 

8096 In Lieu Of Property Taxes 1,698,350.00 1,561,270.00 381,425.00 75.571,179,845.00 

2,956,240.00 Total LCFF Revenue Sources 2,902,707.00 1,983,111.00 919,596.00 68.32

Federal Revenue

8290 All Other Federal Revenues 15,000.00 24,366.00 752.00- 103.0925,118.00 

15,000.00 Total Federal Revenue 24,366.00 25,118.00 752.00- 103.09

Other State Revenues

8550 Mandated Cost Reimbursements 4,742.00 4,742.00 100.004,742.00 

8560 State Lottery Revenue 63,869.00 71,567.00 53,170.50 25.7118,396.50 

8590 All Other State Revenues 88,922.00 107,754.00 13,959.83- 112.96121,713.83 

157,533.00 Total Other State Revenues 184,063.00 144,852.33 39,210.67 78.70

Other Local Revenue

8660 Interest 18,000.00 25,000.00 4,864.43 80.5420,135.57 

8677 Interagency Svcs Between Lea's 136,183.00 136,183.00 56,841.50 58.2679,341.50 

8699 All Other Local Revenues 137,750.00 19,350.00 2,519.94 86.9816,830.06 

291,933.00 Total Other Local Revenue 180,533.00 116,307.13 64,225.87 64.42

Total Year To Date Revenues 3,420,706.00 3,291,669.00 2,269,388.46 1,022,280.54 68.94

Object Description
Adopted

Budget
Revised 
Budget

 
Balance

% 
UsedActualEncumbrance

Expenditure Detail

Certificated Salaries

1100 Teachers' Salaries - Regular 1,125,515.00 1,127,000.00 1.04- 68.18768,409.80 358,591.24 

1130 Teachers' Sals Extra Assignmnt 31,000.00 53,900.00 14,105.96 62.3233,589.45 6,204.59 

1148 Teacher Substitutes 17,000.00 17,000.00 4,043.12 76.2212,956.88 

1300 Cert Suprvsrs' & Admins' Sal 152,724.00 150,472.00 .08- 70.83106,584.39 43,887.69 

1,326,239.00 Total Certificated Salaries 1,348,372.00 921,540.52 18,147.96 68.34408,683.52 

Classified Salaries

2100 Instructional Aides' Salaries 185,738.00 184,669.00 185.66 67.06123,844.16 60,639.18 

2130 Instr Aides - Extra Assignmnt 1,000.00 17,330.00 749.78- 104.3318,079.78 

2199 Instr Aides Oth Miscellaneous 8,000.00 16,000.00 1,175.66 92.6514,824.34 

2300 Classifed Director 149,527.00 149,527.00 .04 70.83105,914.93 43,612.03 

Selection Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? = , 

Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? = Y) Page 1 of 6

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:08AM012 - Live Oak Charter School

30



Financial StatementFiscal13a

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through March 2025

Object Description
Adopted

Budget
Revised 
Budget

 
Balance

% 
UsedActualEncumbrance

Expenditure Detail (continued)

Classified Salaries (continued)

2400 Clerical & Office Salaries 268,241.00 268,241.00 .82- 70.45188,980.47 79,261.35 

2499 Clerical&office Other Misc. 4,000.00 4,000.00 940.75 76.483,059.25 

2900 Other Classified Salaries 21,132.00 36,300.00 59.83- 68.7024,938.56 11,421.27 

2999 Other Class Sals Other Misc. 600.00 700.00 45.50 93.50654.50 

638,238.00 Total Classified Salaries 676,767.00 480,295.99 1,537.18 70.97194,933.83 

Employee Benefits

3101 Benefits - Strs / Certificated 204,952.00 209,180.00 5,640.99 67.34140,867.80 62,671.21 

3102 Benefits - Strs / Classified 9,321.00 139.39- 69.686,494.70 2,965.69 

3201 Benefits - Pers / Certificated 68,488.00 68,488.00 .20- 68.1846,696.50 21,791.70 

3202 Benefits - Pers / Classified 172,643.00 161,891.00 11,346.43 66.26107,274.56 43,270.01 

3311 Benefits - Oasdi/ Certificated 15,698.00 15,698.00 508.84 66.7510,478.51 4,710.65 

3312 Benefits - Oasdi/ Classified 39,571.00 38,933.00 1,199.59 69.2026,943.12 10,790.29 

3331 Benefits - Medicare / Cert. 19,230.00 19,551.00 1,035.64 65.7612,857.40 5,657.96 

3332 Benefits - Medicare / Class. 9,254.00 9,812.00 251.85 69.426,811.32 2,748.83 

3401 H & W Benefits - Certificated 213,750.00 202,871.00 .46- 67.84137,624.32 65,247.14 

3402 H & W Benefits - Classified 60,693.00 59,045.00 .14- 70.4741,609.96 17,435.18 

3501 Benefits - Sui / Certificated 1,163.00 1,175.00 1,297.70- 193.852,277.75 194.95 

3502 Benefits - Sui / Classified 319.00 338.00 8.11 69.54235.04 94.85 

3601 Benefits - Wcomp/ Certificated 13,793.00 14,025.00 190.81 68.339,583.93 4,250.26 

3602 Benefits - Wcomp/ Classified 6,638.00 7,040.00 17.25 70.964,995.34 2,027.41 

826,192.00 Total Employee Benefits 817,368.00 554,750.25 18,761.62 67.87243,856.13 

Books and Supplies

4110 Textbooks 3,200.00 1,600.00 184.46 88.471,415.54 

4210 Books Other Than Textbooks 1,200.00 200.00 100.24 49.8899.76 

4300 Materials & Supplies 2,500.00 2,500.00 222.16 91.112,277.84 

4310 Instructional Mat'ls&supplies 25,785.00 28,385.00 5,970.12 78.9722,414.88 

4340 Computer Sftware & Related Exp 425.00 525.00 74.00 85.90451.00 

4350 Office Supplies 5,000.00 5,000.00 2,426.24 51.482,573.76 

4370 Custodial Supplies 7,000.00 7,000.00 1,464.45 79.085,535.55 

4390 Other Supplies 28,853.00 32,853.00 13,803.38 57.9819,049.62 

4400 Inventory Supplies 4,500.00 9,500.00 4.81 99.959,495.19 

4710 Food Purchases For Food Servc 2,000.00 11,000.00 5,448.88 50.465,551.12 

80,463.00 Total Books and Supplies 98,563.00 68,864.26 29,698.74 69.87.00 

Services and Other Operating Expenditures

5200 Travel & Conferences 23,850.00 25,384.00 4,478.09 82.3620,905.91 

Selection Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? = , 

Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? = Y) Page 2 of 6

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:08AM012 - Live Oak Charter School

31



Financial StatementFiscal13a

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through March 2025

Object Description
Adopted

Budget
Revised 
Budget

 
Balance

% 
UsedActualEncumbrance

Expenditure Detail (continued)

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (continued)

5300 Dues & Memberships 3,500.00 4,900.00 70.00 98.574,830.00 

5450 Other Insurance 31,634.00 29,414.00 100.0029,414.00 

5520 Electricity 49,450.00 49,450.00 33,474.87 32.3115,975.13 

5530 Water 23,000.00 23,000.00 23,000.00 

5550 Laundry And Cleaning 35,460.00 35,460.00 16,295.00 54.0519,165.00 

5560 Waste Disposal 9,500.00 9,500.00 2,102.54 77.877,397.46 

5570 Pest Control 2,750.00 2,750.00 380.00 86.182,370.00 

5590 Other Housekeeping Services 12,000.00 12,000.00 5,952.50 50.406,047.50 

5600 Rentals And Leases 140,990.00 159,326.00 34,485.89 78.36124,840.11 

5630 Repairs 20,000.00 2,500.00 1,886.31 24.55613.69 

5632 Copier Repairs & Maintenance 18.77- NO BDGT18.77 

5800 Other Svcs & Oper Expenditures 119,872.00 138,623.00 67,680.10 51.1870,942.90 

5817 Scoe Data Processing Charges 11,681.00 11,681.00 11,681.00 

5821 Audit Costs 22,000.00 23,100.00 100.0023,100.00 

5823 Legal Costs 5,000.00 18,000.00 4,492.50 75.0413,507.50 

5825 Advertisement (legal, Etc.) 1,500.00 1,500.00 795.00 47.00705.00 

5830 Professional/consultant Srvcs 1,000.00 17,100.00 100.0017,100.00 

5860 Other Employment Costs 500.00 500.00 500.00 

5862 Fingerprinting Costs 2,000.00 2,000.00 803.00 59.851,197.00 

5911 Telephone 3,750.00 3,750.00 510.63 86.383,239.37 

5940 Internet 20,070.00 20,070.00 6,666.48 66.7813,403.52 

5950 Postage 1,100.00 1,500.00 57.17- 103.811,557.17 

540,607.00 Total Services and Other Operating Expenditures 591,508.00 376,330.03 215,177.97 63.62.00 

6600 - 6999

6900 Depreciation Expense 1,081.00 2,883.00 2,162.20 25.00720.80 

1,081.00 Total 6600 - 6999 2,883.00 720.80 2,162.20 25.00.00 

Tuition

7141 Oth Tuitn, Excess Csts Sch Dis 207,480.00 213,843.00 213,843.00 

207,480.00 Total Tuition 213,843.00 .00 213,843.00 .00 

Other Transfers Out

7282 Trnsfrs Apportionments Co Off 6,400.00 310.00 95.166,090.00 

.00 Total Other Transfers Out 6,400.00 6,090.00 310.00 95.16.00 

Total Year To Date Expenditures 3,620,300.00 3,755,704.00 2,408,591.85 499,638.67 64.13847,473.48 

Selection Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? = , 

Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? = Y) Page 3 of 6

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:08AM012 - Live Oak Charter School

32



Financial StatementFiscal13a

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through March 2025

Object Description
Beginning 

Balance
Ending

Balance
Year to Date

Activity

Fund Reconciliation

Assets

9110 Cash In County Treasury 1,072,849.13 251,416.04- 821,433.09 

9120 Cash In Bank(s) 1,025.00 1,025.00 

9130 Revolving Cash Account 6,000.00 6,000.00 

9210 Accts Receivable (prior Year) 88,002.66 88,002.66-

9211 Accts Receivable - Cur Activty 1,643.44 1,643.44-

9218 A/r Charter/district 123,617.00 123,617.00-

9290 A/r Due From Other Govt(pr Yr) 15,449.66 15,449.66-

9299 A/r Due Fm Govt Setup (cur Yr) 155,040.00 155,040.00-

9330 Prepaid Expenditures(expenses) 21,499.33 21,499.33-

9430 Buildings 52,114.46 52,114.46 

9435 Accumulated Depreciation-bldgs 49,231.24- 720.80- 49,952.04-

9460 Lease Asset 400,777.92 400,777.92 

9465 Amortization-Lease Asset 70,671.36- 85,617.28- 156,288.64-

 Total Assets 1,818,116.00 743,006.21- 1,075,109.79 

Liabilities

9510 Accts Payable (prior Year) 351,435.35 351,435.35-

9511 Accts Payable - Cur Activity 177,145.84 25,703.83- 151,442.01 

9518 A/p Charter/district 121,694.00 121,694.00-

9555 Unemployment Ins Liability 320.06 50.79- 269.27 

9556 Workers Comp Ins Liability 906.00 2,368.73- 1,462.73-

9570 Blue Cross Clearing 1,352.00- 1,352.00-

9571 Kaiser Insurance Clearing 14,512.06- 14,512.06-

9573 Dental Insurance Clearing 989.10- 989.10-

9575 Life Insurance Clearing 58.40 58.40 

9577 Other H&w Insurance Clearing 138.08- 138.08-

9590 A/p Due To Other Govts (pr Yr) 6,090.00 6,090.00 

9667 Lease Liability 330,106.56 85,617.28- 244,489.28 

 Total Liabilities 987,697.81 603,802.82- 383,894.99 

 Calculated Fund Balance 830,418.19 139,203.39- 691,214.80 

Beginning Fund Balance

9791 Beginning Balance 830,418.19 830,418.19 

.00 Beginning Fund Balance Proof 139,203.39- 139,203.39-

(139,203.39)Change in Fund Balance - Excess Revenues ( Expenditures )

Memo Only - Ending Fund Balance Accounts

Selection Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? = , 

Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? = Y) Page 4 of 6

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:08AM012 - Live Oak Charter School

33



Financial StatementFiscal13a

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through March 2025

Memo Only - Ending Fund Balance Accounts (continued)

RevisedAdopted

Reserves

9720 Reserve For Encumbrances 847,473.48 847,473.48 

Other Designations

9790 Undesignated/unappropriated 540,954.00 366,383.00 

Selection Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? = , 

Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? = Y) Page 5 of 6

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:08AM012 - Live Oak Charter School

34



Financial StatementFiscal13a

Fund 62 - Charter - Non Profit Corp Fiscal Year 2024/25 Through March 2025

Description
Adopted

Budget
Revised 
Budget

Budget
Balance

% of  
BudgetActualEncumbrance

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

A.  Revenues

B.  Expenditures

C.  Subtotal (Revenue LESS Expense)

D.  Other Financing Sources and Uses

E.  Net Change in Fund Balance

F.  Fund Balance:

Beginning Balance   (9791)

Audit Adjustments    (9793)

Other Restatements (9795)

Adjusted Beginning Balance

G.  Calculated Ending Balance

2,269,388.46 

2,408,591.85 

3,420,706.00 3,291,669.00 1,022,280.54 68.94

3,620,300.00 3,755,704.00 499,638.67 64.13

199,594.00- 464,035.00- 139,203.39- 522,641.87 

199,594.00- 464,035.00- 522,641.87 139,203.39-

830,418.19 

830,418.19 

691,214.80 366,383.00 

830,418.00 

830,418.00 

740,548.00 

740,548.00 

540,954.00 

Sources 

LESS Uses

847,473.48 

Legally Restricted   (9740)

Other Designations  (9780)

      *Components of Ending Fund Balance

Undesig/Unapprop  (9790)

Other

540,954.00 366,383.00 

847,473.48 

Selection Grouped by Account Type - Sorted by Org, Fund, Object, Filtered by (Org = 12, Starting Period = 1, Ending Account Period = 0, Stmt Option? = , 

Zero Amounts? = N, SACS? = N, Restricted? = Y) Page 6 of 6

Generated for John Azzizzi (JAZZIZZI), Mar 31 2025 11:08AM012 - Live Oak Charter School

35



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form   990
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. 

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023
Open to Public 

Inspection
A For the 2023 calendar year, or tax year beginning and ending

B Check if applicable:

Address change

Name change

Initial return

Final return/terminated

Amended return

Application pending

C Name of organization 

Doing business as

Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

D Employer identification number

E Telephone number

F Name and address of principal officer:

G Gross receipts $

H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates? Yes No

H(b) Are all subordinates included? Yes No

 If “No,” attach a list. See instructions.

H(c) Group exemption number  

I Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) 501(c) (  ) (insert no.) 4947(a)(1)  or 527

J Website:  

K Form of organization: Corporation Trust Association Other L Year of formation: M State of legal domicile:

Part I Summary

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

&
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities:

2 Check this box if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . . . . . . . . . 3 
4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) . . . . 4 
5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2023 (Part V, line 2a) . . . . . 5 
6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 
7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 . . . . . . . . 7a 

b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11 . . . . . . . 7b

R
ev

en
ue

E
xp

en
se

s

Prior Year Current Year

8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) . . . . . . . . . . . .
9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) . . . . . . . . . . .

10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) . . . . . .
11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) . . .
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1–3) . . . . .
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) . . . . . .
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5–10)
16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) . . . . . .

b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) 
17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a–11d, 11f–24e) . . . . .
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13–17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) .
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 . . . . . . . .

N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

or
 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

s Beginning of Current Year End of Year

20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 . . . . . .

Part II Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is 
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign 
Here

Signature of officer Date

Type or print name and title

Paid 
Preparer 
Use Only

Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer’s signature Date Check         if 
self-employed

PTIN

Firm’s name    

Firm’s address 

Firm’s EIN  

Phone no.

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat. No. 11282Y Form 990 (2023)

0

John Azzizzi, CFO

Linda Delgado

06/30/2024

3,591,060

0

777,272

07/01/2023

✔

20,423 37,463

233,980

150

LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

232,167

0

2001

3,553,135

0

✔

100 Gnoss Concourse, Petaluma, CA 94952

707-762-9020

0 0

100 GNOSS CONCOURSE

68-0469314

2,812,514 2,813,788

3,020,122

www.liveoakcharter.org

3,289,752

7

PETALUMA, CA 94952

459,527 987,698

60

830,4181,131,726

✔

0

3,298,732

0

CA

To provide public school students of southern

1,591,253

715,210

25,411 -301,308

0 0

Sonoma County with a K-8 Whole-Child, Public Waldorf educational program.

1,818,116

3,289,752

3,527,724

7

0

36



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 2
Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . .
1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No
If “Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
services? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No
If “Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 
 

Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, 
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4 a (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ ) 

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ ) 

4 c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ ) 

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ ) 

4e Total program service expenses  

Form 990 (2023)

0

232,167

each child his or her innate capacities through an age-appropriate curriculum. The organization seeks to educate the whole child

Waldorf educational program. The organization embraces a developmental approach to learning that strives to bring forth from

0

2,707,363

(Continued on Schedule O, Statement 1)

The mission of the organization is to provide public school students of southern Sonoma County with a K-8 whole- child Public

2,707,363

OPERATION OF A CA K-8 SCHOOL GUIDED BY THE CORE PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC WALDORF EDUCATION.

✔

✔

0

0

37



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 3
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,” 

complete Schedule A . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions . . . . 2
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to 

candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) 

election in effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part II . . . . . . . . . . . 4 
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, 

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-19? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part III . . 5 
6 

 
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors 
have  the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, 
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part II . . . 7 

8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,” 
complete Schedule D, Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 

9 
 

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a 
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or 
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments 
or in quasi-endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 

11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, 
VII, VIII, IX, or X, as applicable.

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11a 

b Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more 
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VII . . . . . . . . 11b 

c Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more 
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIII . . . . . . . . 11c 

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets 
reported in Part X, line 16? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11d 

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25?  If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X 11e 
f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses 

the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X 11f 
12 a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete 

Schedule D, Parts XI and XII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12a 
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 

“Yes,” and if the organization answered “No” to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional 12b
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E . . . . 13 
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? . . . . . 14a

b 
 

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, 
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate 
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . . . . . 14b

15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or 
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV . . . . . . . . . . . 15 

16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other 
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV. . . . . . . . 16 

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions . . . . . 17 

18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on 
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 

19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a?  
If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 

20 a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If “Yes,” complete Schedule H . . . . . . 20a 
b If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? . 20b

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II . . . . 21 

Form 990 (2023)

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

38



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 4
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes No
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on

Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and III . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 
23 

 
Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the
organization’s current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 

24 
 
a 
 

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than 
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If “Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 25a . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24a

b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . . 24b
c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year 

to defease any tax-exempt bonds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24c
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . .  24d

25 a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I . . . . . 25a

b 
 

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior 
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? 
If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25b

26 
 

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current 
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part II . . . 26 

27 
 
 

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key 
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee 
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these
persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule
L, Part IV, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions).

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28a

b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If “Yes,” complete  Schedule L, Part IV . . . . 28b
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28c
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M 29
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified 

conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N,  Part I 31
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If “Yes,”

complete Schedule N, Part II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations 

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I . . . . . . . . . . . 33
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, III, 

or IV, and Part V, line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34
35 a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . . . . . . . 35a

b If “Yes” to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a 
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . 35b

36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36

37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization 
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI  37

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 
19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Yes No

1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1a
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . 1b
c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and 

reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1c
Form 990 (2023)

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

7

0

✔

39



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 5
Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)

2 a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax 
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a

b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . 2b

Yes No

3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . . 3a
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O . 3b

4 a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, 
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?  4a

b If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country 

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . . 5a

b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b
c If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5c

6 a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . . . . . 6a

b If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or 
gifts were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6b

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods 

and services provided to the payor? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7a
b If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was 

required to file Form 8282? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7c
d If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . . . . . 7d
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . 7f
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? . . . . . . . . 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . . . . . . . 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . . 9b

10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 . . . . . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities . 10b

11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11a
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources 

against amounts due or received from them.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a

b If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . . . . . . . . 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.

b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which 
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans  . . . . . . . . . . 13b

c Enter the amount of reserves on hand . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . . . . . . 14a

b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No,” provide an explanation on Schedule O . 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or 

excess parachute payment(s) during the year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
If “Yes,” see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16
If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

17 Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person, engage in any activities 
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952, or 4953? . . . . . . . 17
If “Yes,” complete Form 6069.

Form 990 (2023)

✔

✔

60

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

40



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 6
Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure. For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a “No” 

response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year . . 1a
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or 
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar 
committee, explain on Schedule O. 

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . 1b
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with 

any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 

supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? . 5
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
7 a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint 

one or more members of the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7a
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, 

stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7b
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during 

the year by the following:

a The governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8a
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . 8b

 9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at 
the organization’s mailing address?  If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O . . . . 9

Section B. Policies  (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes No

10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10a
b If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, 

affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a

b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go to line 13 . . . . . . . . 12a

b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? 12b
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,” 

describe on Schedule O how this was done . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12c
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? . . . . . . . . . 14
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by 

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . . . . . . . 15a
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15b

If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.
16 a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement 

with a taxable entity during the year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16a
b 
 

If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its 
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed 
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)

(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Own website Another’s website Upon request Other (explain on Schedule O)
19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, 

and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records. 

Form 990 (2023)

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

7

✔

7

100 GNOSS CONCOURSE, PETALUMA, CA 94952

Live Oak Charter School, (707)762-9020

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

CA

41



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 7 
Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and 

Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the 
organization’s tax year. 

• List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of 
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

• List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of “key employee.” 
• List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) 

who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than 
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

• List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than 
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

• List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the 
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.
Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A)  

Name and title

(B)  

Average 
hours 

per week 
(list any 

hours for 
related 

organizations 
below 

dotted line)

(C)  

Position 
(do not check more than one 
box, unless person is both an 
officer and a director/trustee)

Ind
ivid

ual trustee 
or d

irector

Institutional trustee

O
fficer

K
ey em

p
loyee

H
ighest com

pensated 
em

ployee

Form
er

(D)  

Reportable  
compensation   

from the  
organization (W-2/  

1099-MISC/     
1099-NEC)

(E)  

Reportable 
compensation 
from related 

organizations (W-2/ 
1099-MISC/      
1099-NEC)

(F)  

Estimated amount 
of other  

compensation   
from the  

organization and 
related organizations

                                                     

Form 990 (2023) 

Treasurer

0

0

5.00

Kristina Tank-Crestetto

0

Justin Lipp

50.00

00

0.00

Member

0

Member

0

5.00

0

Executive Director

5.00

✔

Member

67,473

0

Jessica Umphress

✔

Linda Delgado - 2023 W2 half year
✔

00.00

✔

0

0

0

50.00

Secretary

0

Samantha Sheppard

0

5.00

✔

✔

16,983

✔

✔

0

0

0.00

0.00

✔

132,988

Kristen Walter

58,722

0✔

Chair

0

0

5.00

0

Stacy Ito

5.00

Member

✔

5.00

0

0.00

✔

0.00

0.00

✔

0.00 0

Robert Bunce

0.00

Consortium Director / Finance Manager

John Azzizzi

✔

42



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 8 
Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A)  

Name and title

(B)  

Average 
hours 

per week 
(list any 

hours for 
related 

organizations 
below 

dotted line)

(C)  

Position 
(do not check more than one 
box, unless person is both an 
officer and a director/trustee)

Ind
ivid

ual trustee 
or d

irector

Institutional trustee

O
fficer

K
ey em

p
loyee

H
ighest com

pensated 
em

ployee

Form
er

(D)  

Reportable  
compensation   

from the  
organization  (W-2/ 

1099-MISC/     
1099-NEC)

(E)  

Reportable 
compensation 
from related 

organizations (W-2/ 
1099-MISC/     
1099-NEC)

(F)  

Estimated amount 
of other  

compensation   
from the  

organization and 
related organizations

                                                         

1b Subtotal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A . . . . . .
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization 

Yes No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated

employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
4 

 
For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such 
individual . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual 
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person . . . . . . 5

Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of 

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A)   
Name and business address

(B)   
Description of services

(C)   
Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who 
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization 

Form 990 (2023) 

✔

✔

200,461

1

200,461 75,705

0

0

None

75,705

✔

0

43



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 9 
Part VIII Statement of Revenue 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(A)  

Total revenue
(B)  

Related or exempt  
function revenue

(C)  
Unrelated  

business revenue

(D)  
Revenue excluded 

from tax under 
sections 512–514

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
, G

ift
s,

 G
ra

nt
s,

 
an

d 
O

th
er

 S
im

ila
r 

A
m

ou
nt

s 1a Federated campaigns . . . . 1a 
b Membership dues . . . . . 1b
c Fundraising events . . . . . 1c 
d Related organizations . . . . 1d
e Government grants (contributions) 1e 
f 
 

All other contributions, gifts, grants, 
and similar amounts not included above 1f 

g Noncash contributions included in 
lines 1a–1f . . . . . . . . 1g $

h Total. Add lines 1a–1f . . . . . . . . . . .    

P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 

R
ev

en
ue

Business Code                     
2a 
b 
c 
d 
e 
f All other program service revenue . .
g Total. Add lines 2a–2f . . . . . . . . . . .  

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue

3 
 

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 
other similar amounts) . . . . . . . . . . .  

4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds
5 Royalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

6a Gross rents . . 6a

(i) Real (ii) Personal

b Less: rental expenses 6b
c Rental income or (loss) 6c
d Net rental income or (loss) . . . . . . . . .

7a 
  

Gross amount from 
sales of assets 
other than inventory 7a

(i) Securities (ii) Other

b 
 

Less: cost or other basis 
and sales expenses . 7b

c Gain or (loss) . . 7c
d Net gain or (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . .  

8a 
 
 
 

Gross income from fundraising 
events (not including $ 
of contributions reported on line 
1c). See Part IV, line 18 . . . 8a

b Less: direct expenses . . . . 8b
c Net income or (loss) from fundraising events . . .

9a 
 

Gross income from gaming 
activities. See Part IV, line 19 . 9a

b Less: direct expenses . . . . 9b
c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities . . . .

10a 
 

Gross sales of inventory, less 
returns and allowances . . . 10a

b Less: cost of goods sold . . . 10b
c Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory . . . .

M
is

ce
lla

ne
o

us
 

R
ev

en
ue

Business Code                     
11a 

b
c
d All other revenue . . . . . . .
e Total. Add lines 11a–11d . . . . . . . . . .    

12 Total revenue. See instructions . . . . . . .   
Form 990 (2023) 

3,020,122

0

0

0

0

611710

0

0

15,569

0

0

0

0

0

232,167

37,463

0

93,984

232,167

0

Fees&Contracts-CBSC 0

37,463

0

0

0

0

611710

0

3,289,752

0

138,183

37,463

0

93,984

2,849,001

Fees&Contracts-AfterCare

0

138,183

0

0

0

0

155,552

0

00

44



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 10 
Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, 
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII.

(A)  
Total expenses

(B)   
Program service 

expenses

(C)  
Management and  
general expenses

(D)  
Fundraising  
expenses

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations 
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21 .

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic 
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 . . . . .

3 
 

Grants and other assistance to foreign 
organizations, foreign governments, and 
foreign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16  

4 Benefits paid to or for members . . . .
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, 

trustees, and key employees . . . . .

6 
 

Compensation not included above to disqualified 
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and 
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . .

7 Other salaries and wages . . . . . .
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include 

section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)

9 Other employee benefits . . . . . . .
10 Payroll taxes . . . . . . . . . . .
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):

a Management . . . . . . . . . .
b Legal . . . . . . . . . . . . .
c Accounting . . . . . . . . . . .
d Lobbying . . . . . . . . . . . .
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17 
f Investment management fees . . . . .
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 

(A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O.) .

12 Advertising and promotion . . . . . .
13 Office expenses . . . . . . . . .
14 Information technology . . . . . . .
15 Royalties . . . . . . . . . . . .
16 Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . .
17 Travel . . . . . . . . . . . . .
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses  

for any federal, state, or local public officials

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings .
20 Interest . . . . . . . . . . . .
21 Payments to affiliates . . . . . . . .
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization .
23 Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . .
24 

 
 

Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered 
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If 
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 
(A), amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)

a 
b 
c 
d 
e All other expenses 

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the 

organization reported in column (B) joint costs 
from a combined educational campaign and 
fundraising solicitation. Check here   if  
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) . . .

Form 990 (2023) 

57,027

923

26,521

300,719

382,508

0

82,126

20,656

18,525

205,994

1,728,275

280

357,746

193,720

0

221,700

105

382,508

101,516

2,707,363

Instructional Materials

12,489

11,452

255,040

271,961

39,010

17,520

2,877

49,821

29,735

254,441

1,473,235

29,735

2,838

12,274

101,621

20,656

263,133

18,525

71,680

883,697

71,400

2,838

923

41,433

14,329

3,591,060

32,305

45



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 11 
Part X Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . .

A
ss

et
s

Li
ab

ili
ti

es
N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
o

r 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
s

(A)  
Beginning of year

(B)  
End of year

1 Cash—non-interest-bearing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 
2 Savings and temporary cash investments . . . . . . . . . . 2 
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 
4 Accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 
5 

 
Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director, 
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . 5 

6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined 
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 6 

7 Notes and loans receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 
8 Inventories for sale or use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges . . . . . . . . . . 9 

10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other 
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D . . . 10a

b Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . . 10b 10c
11 Investments—publicly traded securities . . . . . . . . . . 11 
12 Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . . . . 12 
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . . . . 13 
14 Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) . . . . . 16 
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses  . . . . . . . . . . 17 
18 Grants payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 
19 Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . 21 
22 

 
Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director, 
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . 22 

23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . 23 
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . . 24 
25 

 
Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third 
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17–24). Complete Part X 
of Schedule D . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 

26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 . . . . . . . . . . 26 
     Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here  

and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.

27 Net assets without donor restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . 27 
28 Net assets with donor restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here  
and complete lines 29 through 33.

29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . . . . . . . . 29
30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund . . . 30
31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 31
32 Total net assets or fund balances . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . . . . . . . . . 33

Form 990 (2023)

1,591,253

383,753

200,566

2,883

1,818,116

52,114

330,107

✔

2,000

1,200,293

987,698

931,160

16,101

423,360

36,167

36,167

49,231

21,499

1,131,726

828,418

1,591,253

330,107

618,886

830,418

332,971

1,818,116

1,079,874

38,705

5,721

459,527

46



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Form 990 (2023) Page 12 
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI . . . . . . . . . . . . .
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) . . . 4 
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 
6 Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 
7 Investment expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
8 Prior period adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O) . . . . . . . . . 9

10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line
32, column (B)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Yes No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: Cash Accrual Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain on
Schedule O.

2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . . . 2a
If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or 
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . . . . . . . 2b

If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a 
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis
c If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of

the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . 2c
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O.

3 a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3a

b If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . 3b

Form 990 (2023)

-301,308

0

✔

1,131,726

✔

0

✔

0

3,289,752

✔

0

0

3,591,060

830,418

✔

✔

47



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

SCHEDULE A 
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.   

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023
Open to Public 

Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Part I Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
 2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)
 3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the 

hospital’s name, city, and state:
5 An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in 

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)

6 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).
7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public 

described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

8 A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
 9 An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college 

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or 
university:

10 An organization that normally receives (1) more than 331/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross 
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 331/3% of its 
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses 
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part III.)

 11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).
 12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of 

one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check 
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving 
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the 
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having 
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported 
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c Type III functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, 
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d Type III non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) 
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness 
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type III 
functionally integrated, or Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported organizations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported organization (ii) EIN (iii) Type of organization 
(described on lines 1–10 
above (see instructions))

(iv) Is the organization 
listed in your governing 

document?

(v) Amount of monetary 
support (see  
instructions)

(vi) Amount of  
other support (see 

instructions)

               Yes No           

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Total
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 11285F Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

✔

68-0469314LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

48



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Page 2
Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)  

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under 
Part III. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total

1 
 

Gifts, grants, contributions, and 
membership fees received. (Do not 
include any “unusual grants.”) . . .

2 
 

Tax revenues levied for the 
organization’s benefit and either paid 
to or expended on its behalf . . .

3 
 

The value of services or facilities 
furnished by a governmental unit to the 
organization without charge . . . .

4 Total.  Add lines 1 through 3 . . .

5 
 
 
 
 

The portion of total contributions by 
each person (other than a 
governmental unit or publicly 
supported organization) included on 
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount 
shown on line 11, column (f) . . . .

6 Public support.  Subtract line 5 from line 4
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)  (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total

7 Amounts from line 4 . . . . . .

8 
 
 

Gross income from interest, dividends, 
payments received on securities loans, 
rents, royalties, and income from 
similar sources . . . . . . . .

9 
 

Net income from unrelated business 
activities, whether or not the business 
is regularly carried on . . . . . .

10 
 

Other income. Do not include gain or 
loss from the sale of capital assets 
(Explain in Part VI.) . . . . . . .

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10
 12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . 12
13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) 

organization, check this box and stop here . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2023 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) . . . . 14 %
15 Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part II, line 14 . . . . . . . . . . 15 %
16 a 331/3% support test—2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 331/3% or more, check this

box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
b 331/3% support test—2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 331/3% or more, check 

this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization  . . . . . . . . . . . .  

17 
 
 

a 
 
 

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

b 
 
 

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain 
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see 
instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

49



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Page 3
Part III Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2) 

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II.  
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)  (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees 
received. (Do not include any “unusual grants.”)  

2 
 
 

Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise  
sold or services performed, or facilities 
furnished in any activity that is related to the 
organization’s tax-exempt purpose . . .

3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an 
unrelated trade or business under section 513

4 
 

Tax revenues levied for the 
organization’s benefit and either paid 
to or expended on its behalf . . .

5 
 

The value of services or facilities 
furnished by a governmental unit to the 
organization without charge . . . .

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 . . . .
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3 

received from disqualified persons .

b 
 
 

Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 
received from other than disqualified 
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000 
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year  

c Add lines 7a and 7b . . . . . .
8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from 

line 6.) . . . . . . . . . . .

Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)  (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total

9 Amounts from line 6 . . . . . .
10a 

 
Gross income from interest, dividends, 
payments received on securities loans, rents, 
royalties, and income from similar sources

b 
 

Unrelated business taxable income (less  
section 511 taxes) from businesses 
acquired after June 30, 1975 . . . .

c Add lines 10a and 10b . . . . .
11 

 
Net income from unrelated business 
activities not included on line 10b, whether 
or not the business is regularly carried on  

12 
 

Other income. Do not include gain or 
loss from the sale of capital assets 
(Explain in Part VI.) . . . . . . .

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, 
and 12.) . . . . . . . . . .

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) 
organization, check this box and stop here . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2023 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . . . . . 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part III, line 15 . . . . . . . . . . . 16 %

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2023 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . . . 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part III, line 17 . . . . . . . . . . 18 %
19a 331/3% support tests—2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 331/3%, and line 

17 is not more than 331/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .
b 331/3% support tests—2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 331/3%, and 

line 18 is not more than 331/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  .  
Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 50



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Page 4
Part IV Supporting Organizations  

(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A 
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete 
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations
Yes No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing 
documents? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by 
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

 2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2

 3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If “Yes,” answer 
lines 3b and 3c below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and 
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination. 3b

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 
purposes? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? If
“Yes,” and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN 
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; 
(iii) the authority under the organization’s organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a

b Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization’s organizing document? 5b

c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control? 5c
6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to 

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or 
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor 
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity 
with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990). 7

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line
7? If “Yes,” complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990). 8

 9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more 
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 9a

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which 
the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 9b

c Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit 
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If “Yes,” answer line 10b below. 10a

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to 
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

51



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Page 5
Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued)  

 11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and 

11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a

Yes No

b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b
c A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes” to line 11a, 11b, or 11c, 

provide detail in Part VI. 11c
Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or 
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers, 
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) 
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported 
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the 
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

 2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported 
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes,” explain in Part 
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, 
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 2

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations
Yes No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors 
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part VI how control 
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed 
the supported organization(s). 1

Section D. All Type III Supporting Organizations
Yes No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the 
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax 
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the 
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

 2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported 
organization(s), or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI 
how the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

 3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have 
a significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s 
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s 
supported organizations played in this regard. 3

Section E. Type III Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).

Yes No 2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of 
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify 
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, 
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined 
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s 
involvement, one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If 
“Yes,” explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would 
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement. 2b

 3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or 

trustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each 

of its supported organizations? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b
Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 52



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Page 6
Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See 
instructions. All other Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A—Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year 
(optional)          

1 Net short-term capital gain 1
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2
3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3
4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4
5 Depreciation and depletion 5
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection 

of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of 
property held for production of income (see instructions) 6

7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8

Section B—Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year 
(optional)          

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see  
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

a Average monthly value of securities 1a
b Average monthly cash balances 1b
c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c) 1d
e Discount claimed for blockage or other factors 

(explain in detail in Part VI):
2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount, 

see instructions). 4
5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Multiply line 5 by 0.035. 6
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8

Section C—Distributable Amount Current Year

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A) 1
2 Enter 0.85 of line 1. 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A) 3
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to 

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6
7 Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type III supporting organization 

(see instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

53



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Page 7
Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D—Distributions Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 

 
Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported 
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 4
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required—provide details in Part VI) 5
6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 6
7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive 

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions. 8
9 Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, line 6 9

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10

Section E—Distribution Allocations (see instructions)
(i) 

Excess Distributions

(ii) 
Underdistributions 

Pre-2023

(iii) 
Distributable 

Amount for 2023

1 Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2023 
(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See 
instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2023
a From 2018 . . . . .
b From 2019 . . . . .
c From 2020 . . . . .  
d From 2021 . . . . .  
e From 2022 . . . . .
f Total of lines 3a through 3e
g Applied to underdistributions of prior years
h Applied to 2023 distributable amount
i Carryover from 2018 not applied (see instructions)
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

4 Distributions for 2023 from  
Section D, line 7: $

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b Applied to 2023 distributable amount
c Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 
Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2023, if 
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result 
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 
 

Remaining underdistributions for 2023. Subtract lines 3h 
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in 
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2024. Add lines 3j 
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:
a Excess from 2019 . . .  

b Excess from 2020 . . .
c Excess from 2021 . . .
d Excess from 2022 . . .
e Excess from 2023 . . .

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

54



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Page 8
Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part 

III, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section 
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, 
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 55



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

SCHEDULE D 
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Financial Statements
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990,  

Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.  
Attach to Form 990.  

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023
Open to Public 
Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Part I Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts 
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

1 Total number at end of year . . . . . . . .
2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) .
3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year) . .
4 Aggregate value at end of year . . . . . . .
5 

 
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised 
funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? . . . . . . Yes No

6 
 

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used 
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose 
conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

Part II Conservation Easements 
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education)
Protection of natural habitat
Preservation of open space

Preservation of a historically important land area
Preservation of a certified historic structure

2 
 

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation 
easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year

a Total number of conservation easements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2b
c Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included on line 2a . . 2c
d Number of conservation easements included on line 2c acquired after July 25, 2006, and not 

on a historic structure listed in the National Register  . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2d
3 

 
Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax year

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located
5 
 

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

8 
 

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i) 
and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

9 
 
 

In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance 
sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the 
organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

Part III Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets  
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1 
 
 

a 
  
 

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works 
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b 
  
 

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, 
provide the following amounts relating to these items.

(i)  Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $
(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $

2 
 

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items.

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat. No. 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2023

68-0469314LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

56



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 Page 2 
Part III Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)
3 

 
Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its 
collection items (check all that apply).

a Public exhibition
b Scholarly research
c Preservation for future generations

d Loan or exchange program
e Other

4 
 

Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part 
XIII.

5 
 

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar 
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? . . Yes No

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements  
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 
990, Part X, line 21.

1 
 
a 
 

Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not 
included on Form 990, Part X? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table.
Amount

c Beginning balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1c
d Additions during the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1d
e Distributions during the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1e
f Ending balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1f

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? Yes No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part XIII . . . .

Part V Endowment Funds 
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance . . .
b Contributions . . . . . . .
c 
 

Net investment earnings, gains, and 
losses . . . . . . . . . .

d Grants or scholarships . . . .
e 
 

Other expenditures for facilities and 
programs . . . . . . . . .

f Administrative expenses . . . .
g End of year balance . . . . .

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment %
b Permanent endowment %
c Term endowment  %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3 
 
a 
 

Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes No
(i)   Unrelated organizations? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3a(i)
(ii)  Related organizations? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3a(ii)

b If “Yes” on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? . . . . . . . . 3b
4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment 
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a)  Cost or other basis 
(investment)

(b)  Cost or other basis 
(other)

(c)  Accumulated 
depreciation

(d)  Book value

1a Land . . . . . . . . . . . .
b Buildings . . . . . . . . . . .
c Leasehold improvements . . . . .
d Equipment . . . . . . . . . .
e Other . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 10c, column (B)) . . . . .  
Schedule D (Form 990) 2023

0

0

0

0

0

2,88349,231

2,883

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

52,1140

0

57



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 Page 3 
Part VII Investments—Other Securities 

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Description of security or category 

 (including name of security)
(b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:  

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(2) Closely held equity interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(3) Other

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 12, col. (B))   . .
Part VIII Investments—Program Related  

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:  

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, col. (B)) . .
Part IX Other Assets 

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
(a) Description (b) Book value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 15, col. (B)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Part X Other Liabilities 
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,  
line 25.

1.                                                                      (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 25, col. (B))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the 
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII .

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023

Operating Right-of-Use Asset (net)

330,107

330,107

330,107

✔

Operating Lease Liabilities

330,107

0

58



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 Page 4 
Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return 

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . 2b
c Recoveries of prior year grants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2e

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b . . 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4c

5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.) . . . . . . . 5
Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return 

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Prior year adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2b
c Other losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2e

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b . . 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4c

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) . . . . . . . 5
Part XIII Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 
2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023

0

0

JURISDICTION AND WITH THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE TAX BOARD

DISCLOSURES OF UNCERTAIN INCOME TAX POSITIONS ARE REQUIRED. THE SCHOOL IS SUBJECT TO INCOME TAX ON NET

3,289,752

0

3,289,752

3,591,060

Schedule D, Part X, Line 2 - THE SCHOOL IS A NONPROFIT ENTITY EXEMPT FROM THE PAYMENT OF INCOME TAXES UNDER

POSITIONS ARE MORE LIKELY THAN NOT OF BEING SUSTAINED UPON POTENTIAL AUDIT OR EXAMINATION; THEREFORE, NO

0

0

FILES AN EXEMPT SCHOOL RETURN AND APPLICABLE UNRELATED BUSINESS INCOME TAX RETURN IN THE U.S. FEDERAL

INCOME THAT IS DERIVED FROM BUSINESS ACTIVITIES THAT ARE UNRELATED TO THE EXEMPT PURPOSES. THE SCHOOL

0

3,591,060

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 501(C)(3) AND CALIFORNIA REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE SECTION 23701D.

0

3,591,060

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3,289,752

0

ACCORDINGLY, NO PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE FOR INCOME TAXES. MANAGEMENT HAS DETERMINED THAT ALL INCOME TAX

0

59



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

SCHEDULE E  
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service

Schools
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 13, or 

Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 48.  
Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.  

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023
Open to Public 

Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Part I
YES NO

1 Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter, 
bylaws, other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

2 
 

Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its 
brochures, catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions, 
programs, and scholarships? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

3 
 
 
 
 

Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy on its primary publicly accessible Internet 
homepage at all times during its tax year in a manner reasonably expected to be noticed by visitors to the
homepage, or through newspaper or broadcast media during the period of solicitation for students, or during 
the registration period if it has no solicitation program, in a way that makes the policy known to all parts of
the general community it serves? If “Yes,” please describe. If “No,” please explain. If you need more space, 
use Part II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

4 Does the organization maintain the following?
a Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? . . . . . 4a
b 
 

Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nondiscriminatory 
basis? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4b

c 
 

Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing 
with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4c

d Copies of all material used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contributions? . . . . . . . . 4d
If you answered “No” to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part II.

5 Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to:
a Students’ rights or privileges? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5a

b Admissions policies? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5b

c Employment of faculty or administrative staff? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5c

d Scholarships or other financial assistance? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5d

e Educational policies? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5e

f Use of facilities? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5f

g Athletic programs? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5g

h Other extracurricular activities? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5h
If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part II.

6a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? . . . . . . 6a
b Has the organization’s right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? . . . . . . . . . . . . 6b

If you answered “Yes” on either line 6a or line 6b, explain on Part II.

7 
 

Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through
4.05 of Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, as modified by Rev. Proc. 2019-22, 2019-22 I.R.B. 1260, covering 
racial nondiscrimination? If “No,” explain on Part II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 50085D Schedule E (Form 990) 2023

✔

LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

✔

✔

✔

Nondiscriminatory policy statements are included in all advertisements, enrollment materials and the school's

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

68-0469314

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

charter as a public school.

✔

60



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule E (Form 990) 2023 Page 2
Part II Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, lines 3, 4d, 5h, 6b, and 7, as applicable. 

Also provide any other additional information. See instructions.

Schedule E (Form 990) 2023 

FINANCIAL AID OR ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES

Schedule E, Part I, Line 6 - THE ORGANIZATION IS OPERATED AS A CALIFORNIA PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AND RECEIVES

61



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

SCHEDULE J 
(Form 990) 2023

Compensation Information

Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest 
Compensated Employees

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 23. 
Attach to Form 990.     

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

Open to Public 
Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Part I Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes No

1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items.

First-class or charter travel Housing allowance or residence for personal use
Travel for companions Payments for business use of personal residence
Tax indemnification and gross-up payments Health or social club dues or initiation fees
Discretionary spending account Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment 
or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If “No,” complete Part III to 
explain . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1b

2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all 
directors, trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line
1a? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the 
organization’s CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a 
related organization to establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part III. 

Compensation committee Written employment contract
Independent compensation consultant Compensation survey or study
Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee

4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing 
organization or a related organization:

a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4a
b Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? . . . . . . . . 4b
c Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement? . . . . . . . . 4c

If “Yes” to any of lines 4a–c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III.

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5–9.
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any

compensation contingent on the revenues of:

a The organization? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5a
b Any related organization? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5b

If “Yes” on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III.

6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:

a The organization? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6a
b Any related organization? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6b

If “Yes” on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part III.

7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed 
payments not described on lines 5 and 6? If “Yes,” describe in Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject  
to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” describe
in Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

9 If “Yes” on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in 
Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat. No. 50053T Schedule J (Form 990) 2023

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

68-0469314LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

62



DRAFT by efile
.fo

rm
990.org

Schedule J (Form 990) 2023 Page  2
Part II Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the 
instructions, on row (ii). Do not list any individuals that aren’t listed on Form 990, Part VII.
Note: The sum of columns (B)(i)–(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual.

(A) Name and Title

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC and/or 1099-NEC compensation

(i) Base 
compensation

(ii) Bonus & incentive 
compensation

(iii) Other 
reportable 

compensation

(C) Retirement and 
other deferred 
compensation

(D) Nontaxable 
benefits

(E) Total of columns 
(B)(i)–(D)

(F) Compensation  
in column (B) reported  

as deferred on prior  
Form 990                                         

1

(i)

     (ii)

2

(i)

    (ii)

3

(i)

     (ii)

4

(i)

     (ii)

5

(i)

     (ii)

6

(i)

     (ii)

7

(i)

     (ii)

8

(i)

     (ii)

9

(i)

     (ii)

10

(i)

     (ii)

11

(i)

     (ii)

12

(i)

     (ii)

13

(i)

     (ii)

14

(i)

     (ii)

15

(i)

     (ii)

16

(i)

     (ii)

Schedule J (Form 990) 2023

0

58,722

0

0John Azzizzi, Consortium
Director / Finance Manager

0

Linda Delgado - 2023 W2 half
year, Executive Director

191,710

0

0

0

00

0

0

0

0

0

0132,988

0 00

0

67,473 0

0

0 84,36616,893

63



DRAFT by efile
.fo

rm
990.org

Schedule J (Form 990) 2023 Page  3
Part III Supplemental Information
Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part II. Also complete this part 
for any additional information.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2023

ADMINISTRATION EMPLOYEES.

PROCESS WAS UNDERTAKEN TO REVIEW AND COMPARE COMPENSATION OF OTHER KEY EMPLOYEES INCLUDING CERTIFICATED TEACHERS AND SCHOOL

Schedule J, Part I, Line 3 - FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION, INFORMATION WAS GATHERED FROM COMPARABLE ORGANIZATIONS AND REVIEWED IN OPEN

SESSION AT A REGULAR BOARD MEETING. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION WAS APPROVED IN OPEN SESSION AT A REGULAR BOARD MEETING. A SIMILAR

64



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

SCHEDULE O   
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ
Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. 

Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.   

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023
Open to Public 
Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 51056K Schedule O (Form 990) 2023

Form 990, Part VI, Section A, Line 8b - THERE ARE NO COMMITTEES WITH THE AUTHORITY TO ACT ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD.

POLICY, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC UPON REQUEST. IN ADDITION, FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS, AUDIT REPORTS, AND MANY OTHER SCHOOL RECORDS AND REPORTS ARE MADE AVAILABLE AS PART OF

THE SONOMA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND ARE A MATTER OF PUBLIC RECORD

INTEREST POLICY ARE REQUIRED TO ANNUALLY COMPLETE AND FILE FORM 700 "STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC INTEREST" WITH

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 12c - BOARD MEMBERS, OFFICERS, AND EMPLOYEES LISTED IN SCHOOL'S CONFLICT OF

COMPENSATION WAS APPROVED IN OPEN SESSION AT A REGULAR BOARD MEETING. A SIMILAR PROCESS WAS UNDERTAKEN

COMPARABLE ORGANIZATIONS AND REVIEWED IN OPEN SESSION AT A REGULAR BOARD MEETING. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 15 - FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION, INFORMATION WAS GATHERED FROM

Form 990, Part VI, Section C, Line 19 - ALL SCHOOL PUBLIC RECORDS, GOVERNING DOCUMENTS, CONFLICT OF INTEREST

WEBSITE. FORM 990 IS ALSO PUBLICLY AVAILABLE VIA THE GUIDESTAR WEBSITE.

BOARD MEETING AGENDA PACKETS POSTED ON THE SCHOOL'S WEBSITE OR SEPARATELY POSTED ON THE SCHOOL'S

68-0469314LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

TO REVIEW AND COMPARE COMPENSATION OF OTHER KEY EMPLOYEES INCLUDING CERTIFICATED TEACHERS AND SCHOOL

ADMINISTRATION EMPLOYEES.

REGULARLY SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING PRIOR TO SUBMISSION.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 11b - FORM 990 IS REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE SCHOOL'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT A

65



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Page: 1

Schedule O, Statement 1 LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

Form: Form 990 (2023) EIN: 68-0469314

Page: 2  Part III, Line 1

Mission Description
_

Description
_

head, hands and heart through education that cultivates and integrates each child's creative, intellectual, emotional, physical, and  social capacities. The

organization offers an artistically rich and experientially-based program that enlivens student curiosity about the natural world and human culture as the

foundation for fostering academic achievement.
_

66



DRAFT by efile
.fo

rm
990.org

SCHEDULE R 
(Form 990) 2023

Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships

Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37. 
Attach to Form 990.  

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

Open to Public 
Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Part I Identification of Disregarded Entities. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.

(a) 
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity

(b) 
Primary activity

(c)  
Legal domicile (state  
or foreign country)

(d) 
Total income

(e) 
End-of-year assets

(f)  
Direct controlling  

entity

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Part II Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had  
one or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.

(a) 
Name, address, and EIN of related organization

(b) 
 Primary activity

(c)  
Legal domicile (state  
or foreign country)

(d) 
Exempt Code section

(e)  
Public charity status  
(if section 501(c)(3))

(f)  
Direct controlling  

entity

(g) 
Section 512(b)(13) 

controlled 
entity?

                          Yes No

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat. No. 50135Y Schedule R (Form 990) 2023

501(C)(3)
✔

CA N/AFUNDRAISINGLIVE OAK FOUNDATION (68-0469315) LINE 12B, II
PO BOX 2054, PETALUMA, CA 94952

68-0469314LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

67



DRAFT by efile
.fo

rm
990.org

Schedule R (Form 990) 2023 Page 2

Part III Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 34,  
because it had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.

(a) 
Name, address, and EIN of 

related organization

(b) 
Primary activity

(c) 
Legal  

domicile 
(state or 
foreign 
country)

(d) 
Direct controlling 

entity

(e) 
Predominant 

income (related, 
unrelated, 

excluded from 
tax under 

sections 512—514)

(f) 
Share of total 

income

(g) 
Share of end-of-

year assets

(h) 
Disproportionate 
allocations?

(i) 
Code V—UBI  

amount in box 20 
of Schedule K-1  

(Form 1065)

(j) 
General or 
managing 
partner?

(k) 
Percentage 
ownership

                                   Yes No      Yes No      

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Part IV Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV,  
line 34, because it had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

(a) 
Name, address, and EIN of related organization

(b) 
Primary activity

(c) 
Legal domicile 

(state or foreign country)

(d) 
Direct controlling 

entity

(e) 
Type of entity  

(C corp, S corp, or trust)

(f) 
Share of total 

income

(g) 
Share of 

end-of-year assets

(h) 
Percentage 
ownership

(i) 
Section 512(b)(13) 

controlled 
entity?

                                    Yes No

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Schedule R (Form 990) 2023

68



DRAFT by efile
.fo

rm
990.org

Schedule R (Form 990) 2023 Page 3

Part V Transactions With Related Organizations. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

Note: Complete line 1 if any entity is listed in Parts II, III, or IV of this schedule. Yes No

1 During the tax year, did the organization engage in any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II–IV?
a Receipt of (i) interest, (ii) annuities, (iii) royalties, or (iv) rent from a controlled entity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1a
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1b
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1c
d Loans or loan guarantees to or for related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1d
e Loans or loan guarantees by related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1e

f Dividends from related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1f
g Sale of assets to related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1g
h Purchase of assets from related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1h
i Exchange of assets with related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1i
j Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1j

k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1k
l Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1l
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1m
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1n
o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1o

p Reimbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1p
q Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1q

r Other transfer of cash or property to related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1r
s Other transfer of cash or property from related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1s

2 If the answer to any of the above is “Yes,” see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds.

(a) 
Name of related organization

(b) 
Transaction 
type (a—s)

(c) 
Amount involved

(d) 
Method of determining amount involved

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 
Schedule R (Form 990) 2023

CASH CONTRIBUTION

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

LIVE OAK FOUNDATION

✔

✔

✔

c

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

155,552

✔

69



DRAFT by efile
.fo

rm
990.org

Schedule R (Form 990) 2023 Page 4

Part VI Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.

Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets 
or gross revenue) that was not a related organization. See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships.

(a) 
Name, address, and EIN of entity

(b) 
Primary activity

(c) 
Legal domicile 
(state or foreign 

country)

(d) 
Predominant  

income (related, 
unrelated, excluded 

from tax under 
sections 512—514) 

(e) 
Are all partners 

section 
501(c)(3) 

organizations?

(f) 
Share of  

total income

(g) 
Share of  

end-of-year 
assets

(h) 
Disproportionate 
allocations?

(i) 
Code V—UBI 

amount in box 20 
of Schedule K-1 

(Form 1065)

(j) 
General or 
managing 
partner?

(k) 
Percentage 
ownership

                    Yes No           Yes No      Yes No      

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

Schedule R (Form 990) 2023

70



DRAFT
 b

y 
ef

ile
.fo

rm
99

0.
or

g

Schedule R (Form 990) 2023 Page 5

Part VII Supplemental Information  
Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R. See instructions.

Schedule R (Form 990) 2023

71



3651233 Form 199  2023  Side 1For Privacy Notice, get FTB 1131 EN-SP.

1 Gross sales or receipts from other sources. From Side 2, Part II, line 8  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                               • 1 00
2 Gross dues and assessments from members and affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         • 2 00
3 Gross contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                    • 3 00
4 Total gross receipts for filing requirement test. Add line 1 through line 3.

This line must be completed. If the result is less than $50,000, see General Information B  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .               • 4 00

5 Cost of goods sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                               • 5 00
6 Cost or other basis, and sales expenses of assets sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   • 6 00
7 Total costs. Add line 5 and line 6 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                               7 00
8 Total gross income. Subtract line 7 from line 4 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                  • 8 00
9 Total expenses and disbursements. From Side 2, Part II, line 18 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                     • 9 00

10 Excess of receipts over expenses and disbursements. Subtract line 9 from line 8  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                       • 10 00
11 Total payments	 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .• 11 00
12 Use tax. See General Information K   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                          • 12 00
13 Payments balance. If line 11 is more than line 12, subtract line 12 from line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                         • 13 00
14 Use tax balance. If line 12 is more than line 11, subtract line 11 from line 12 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                           • 14 00
15 Penalties and interest. See General Information J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                  15 00
16 Balance due. Add line 12 and line 15. Then subtract line 11 from the result  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                           • 16 00

TAXABLE YEAR

2023
California Exempt Organization 
Annual Information Return

Sign 
Here

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is 
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than taxpayer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Paid 
Preparer’s  
Use Only

FORM

199

A First return. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         □ Yes □ No
B Amended return. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                  •□ Yes □ No
C IRC Section 4947(a)(1) trust. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                           □ Yes □ No
D Final information return?
• □ Dissolved  □ Surrendered (Withdrawn) □ Merged/Reorganized
Enter date: (mm/dd/yyyy) • ____ / _____ / _______

E Check accounting method:  (1) □ Cash    (2) □ Accrual    (3)□ Other
F Federal return filed?    (1) • □ 990T    (2) • □ 990PF    (3) •□Sch H (990)

(4) □Other 990 series
G Is this a group filing? See instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                 •□ Yes □ No
H Is this organization in a group exemption . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                 □ Yes □ No

If “Yes,” what is the parent’s name?

I Did the organization have any changes to its guidelines  
not reported to the FTB? See instructions.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              •□ Yes □ No

J If exempt under R&TC Section 23701d, has the organization  
engaged in political activities? See instructions. . . . . . . . . . .         •□ Yes □ No

K Is the organization exempt under R&TC Section 23701g?. . .  •□ Yes □ No
If “Yes,” enter the gross receipts from nonmember sources. . .  $ 

L Is the organization a limited liability company?. . . . . . . . . . .          •□ Yes □ No
M Did the organization file Form 100 or Form 109 to report 

taxable income?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                   •□ Yes □ No
N Is the organization under audit by the IRS or has the IRS 

audited in a prior year?.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                            •□ Yes □ No
O Is federal Form 1023/1024 pending?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                    □ Yes □ No

Date filed with IRS 

Part I	 Complete Part I unless not required to file this form. See General Information B and C.

Receipts 
and 

Revenues

Expenses

Payments

Title Date • Telephone

Date Check if self-

employed ▶ □
• PTIN

Firm’s name (or yours,
if self-employed)       ▶
and address

• Firm’s FEIN

• Telephone

May the FTB discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   • □ Yes □ No

Calendar Year 2023 or fiscal year beginning (mm/dd/yyyy)	 , and ending (mm/dd/yyyy)	 .
Corporation/Organization name California corporation number

Additional information. See instructions. FEIN

Street address (suite or room) PMB no.

City State ZIP code

Foreign country name Foreign province/state/county Foreign postal code

Signature
of officer  ▶

Preparer’s  
signature  ▶

72



Side 2  Form 199  2023

1 Gross sales or receipts from all business activities. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 • 1 00
2 Interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                 • 2 00
3 Dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                               • 3 00
4 Gross rents  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                             • 4 00
5 Gross royalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                           • 5 00
6 Gross amount received from sale of assets (See instructions)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      • 6 00
7 Other income. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                              • 7 00
8 Total gross sales or receipts from other sources. Add line 1 through line 7. Enter here and on Side 1, Part I, line 1 . . .    8 00
9 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts paid. Attach schedule . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                               • 9 00

10 Disbursements to or for members . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                            • 10 00
11 Compensation of officers, directors, and trustees. Attach schedule . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                   • 11 00
12 Other salaries and wages . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                   • 12 00
13 Interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                 • 13 00
14 Taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                  • 14 00
15 Rents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                  • 15 00
16 Depreciation and depletion (See instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                   • 16 00
17 Other expenses and disbursements. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                             • 17 00
18 Total expenses and disbursements. Add line 9 through line 17. Enter here and on Side 1, Part I, line 9 . . . . . . . . .          18 00

Part II	 Organizations with gross receipts of more than $50,000 and private foundations 
regardless of amount of gross receipts — complete Part II or furnish substitute information.

Receipts 
from 
Other 
Sources

Expenses 
and 
Disburse- 
ments

Schedule L  Balance Sheet Beginning of taxable year
Assets

End of taxable year
(a) (b) (c) (d)

1	 Cash  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      •
2	 Net accounts receivable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                       •
3	 Net notes receivable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          •
4	 Inventories  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 •
5	 Federal and state government obligations . . . . . . . . . .          •
6	 Investments in other bonds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                    •
7	 Investments in stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          •
8	 Mortgage loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                              •
9	 Other investments. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              •

10	 a	 Depreciable assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                       
b	 Less accumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              

11	 Land  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      •
12	 Other assets. Attach schedule . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   •
13	 Total assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                              

14	 Accounts payable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                            •
15	 Contributions, gifts, or grants payable  . . . . . . . . . . . .            •
16	 Bonds and notes payable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                       •
17	 Mortgages payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                           •
18	 Other liabilities. Attach schedule . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .               
19	 Capital stock or principal fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   •
20	 Paid-in or capital surplus. Attach reconciliation  . . . . .     •
21	 Retained earnings or income fund  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .               •
22	 Total liabilities and net worth  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                

1	 Net income per books . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                         • 7	 Income recorded on books this year
2	 Federal income tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                           • not included in this return. Attach schedule  . .  •
3	 Excess of capital losses over capital gains  . . . . . . . . .         • 8	 Deductions in this return not charged
4	 Income not recorded on books this year. against book income this year.
	 Attach schedule . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                             • Attach schedule . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                       •
5	 Expenses recorded on books this year not 9	 Total. Add line 7 and line 8  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .             
	 deducted in this return. Attach schedule . . . . . . . . . . .           • 10	 Net income per return.
6	 Total. Add line 1 through line 5 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                  Subtract line 9 from line 6 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .             

3652233

Liabilities and net worth

Do not complete this schedule if the amount on Schedule L, line 13, column (d), is less than $50,000.
Schedule M-1	 Reconciliation of income per books with income per return

SEE STATEMENT 1

SEE STATEMENT 2

STMT 3

STMT 4

73



2023 PAGE 1

68-0469314

STATEMENT 1
FORM 199, PART II, LINE 11
COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, TRUSTEES, AND KEY EMPLOYEES

CURRENT DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, TRUSTEES, AND KEY EMPLOYEES:

Name and Address
Title and Avg Hrs Per 

Week Devoted Compensation
Contribution to 

EBP & DC
Expense 

Account / Other

STACY ITO CHAIR 0 0 0
100 Gnoss Concourse #1 5.00
Petaluma, CA 94952

SAMANTHA SHEPPARD SECRETARY 0 0 0
100 Gnoss Concourse #1 5.00
Petaluma, CA 94952

ROBERT BUNCE TREASURER 0 0 0
100 Gnoss Concourse #1 5.00
Petaluma, CA 94952

KRISTEN WALTER MEMBER-AT-LARGE 0 0 0
100 Gnoss Concourse #1 5.00
Petaluma, CA 94952

JESSICA UMPHRESS MEMBER-AT-LARGE 0 0 0
100 Gnoss Concourse #1 5.00
Petaluma, CA 94952

JUSTIN LIPP MEMBER-AT-LARGE 0 0 0
100 Gnoss Concourse #1 5.00
Petaluma, CA 94952

KRISTINA TANK-CRESTETTO MEMBER-AT-LARGE 0 0 0
100 Gnoss Concourse #1 5.00
Petaluma, CA 94952

LINDA DELGADO (1/2 YR) EXEC DIRECTOR (CEO) 67,473            16,983            0
100 Gnoss Concourse #1 50.00
Petaluma, CA 94952

JOHN AZZIZZI CONS DIR/FIN MGR 132,988          58,722            0
100 Gnoss Concourse #1 50.00
Petaluma, CA 94952

TOTAL 200,461$        75,705            0

CALIFORNIA STATEMENTS

LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

74



2023 PAGE 2

68-0469314

STATEMENT 2
FORM 199, PART II, LINE 17
OTHER EXPENSES

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS.............................................................................................. 801,120$         
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES.............................................................................................. 107,359           
SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES................................................................. 488,388           

TOTAL 1,396,867$      

STATEMENT 3
FORM 199, SCHEDULE L, LINE 12
OTHER ASSETS

PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED CHARGES................................................................ 21,499$           
OPERATING RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS..................................................................................... 330,107           

TOTAL 351,606$         

STATEMENT 4
FORM 199, SCHEDULE L, LINE 18
OTHER LIABILITIES

DEFERRED REVENUE.............................................................................................................. 38,705$           
OPERATING ROU LEASE LIABILITIES..................................................................................... 330,107           

TOTAL 368,812$         

CALIFORNIA STATEMENTS

LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL

75



 
 
To: Linda Delgado, Director, and Board of Trustees, Live Oak Charter School 
From: Liz Beaven, Executive Director, on behalf of the Alliance for Public Waldorf Education 
 
April 4, 2025 
 
We are delighted to inform you that Live Oak Charter School has been approved as a “full 
member in good standing” of the Alliance for Public Waldorf Education, subject to the action 
items below. This designation is given by the Alliance Board of Directors based on a 
recommendation by the Peer Site Visit Team and in recognition of your excellent work. This 
entitles Live Oak Charter School to a sublicense for use of the service mark “Public Waldorf”. 
The sublicence is attached for your review and signature. 
 
The Membership Review Committee and the Alliance Board commend Live Oak for the 
thoroughness of your self study process, report, and support of the site visit. Your report is a 
model of clarity - thank you. We also commend you for your responsiveness with requests for 
expansion of the report from three to seven Principles.It was evident to the Visiting Team that 
excellent work is being done at the school for the benefit of the students and school community.  
 
Live Oak Charter School is presenting a unique opportunity and challenge to the growth of 
Public Waldorf education with the planned closure of the school, move to dependent charter  
status, change of campus, merger with another school, and change of leadership. The Alliance 
supported these steps, with requirements that are intended to support the school's continued 
development and to protect the meaning of the service marked term. 
 
Given the extent of impending change, we are placing the following conditions that are required 
for transfer of sublicense and use of Public Waldorf at the new Valley Vista school.  
 

●​ Liz Beaven, on behalf of the Alliance, will meet with District staff to explain service mark, 
terms of use, language, etc. and to express our desire to support this and ensure 
success. This meeting will be followed by a written summary.  

●​ We would like to understand that documentation of agreements is already in place and, if 
one does not already exist, have you work on creating an MOU that spells out the 
District’s commitment to professional development, faculty hiring, and continuity of 
school leadership. 

●​ Agreement on Alliance engagement in planning and delivery of Waldorf-focused teacher 
professional development: summer 2025 and through the 2025-26 school year. This will 
allow the Alliance to provide guidance and support and to monitor progress during these 
first crucial months. Professional development should not be limited to those “new to 

76



Waldorf” but should include all teachers and faculty in topics of cultural sensitivity and 
responsiveness in recognition of the expanded demographics of the new school. 

●​ The addition of the following to the school’s self-study action plan: school leadership 
articulate and implement a multi-year plan for community development that focuses on 
building a cohesive, integrated school environment that honors the existing cultures and 
contributions of the two schools (Live Oak and Valley Vista) and the new members; this 
will be a new school and these community building activities will be essential. 
Engagement in professional development will support this.   

●​ The Alliance will actively engage with Valley Vista Public Waldorf School, to include 
observations and evaluation at the mid-year and end of the 2025-26 school year.  

 
We are confident that there will be much for all of us to learn as this process proceeds; we look 
forward to supporting you in this new endeavor.  
 
I will schedule a call with your Director or designee within the next week to discuss next steps 
with meeting these conditions. We will request a letter from Live Oak now and from the new 
administration when they begin, affirming commitment to the conditions, the follow through 
necessary to complete these conditions, and the status updates indicated in this letter and the 
Alliance Membership Guide. 
 
I will also attend a scheduled meeting next week to discuss the planned Waldorf professional 
development.  
 
Thank you again for your work on the Live Oak self-study. It stands as a fitting reflection of a 
long tradition of Waldorf-inspired education at Live Oak. Thank you also for the commitment you 
have all shown to continuing and extending Public Waldorf education in Petaluma. 
 
Congratulations on reaching this well-deserved milestone.  
 
Warm wishes, 

 
Liz Beaven, EdD 

77



 

Alliance for Public Waldorf Education                       
Sublicense Agreement  

 
This License Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the Alliance for Public Waldorf 

Education (hereinafter referred to as "Licensor"), having its principal place of business at 1000 Rock River 

Drive, Suite 218, Folsom, CA, 95630, and Live Oak Charter School (hereinafter referred to as 

"Sublicensee"), having its principal place of business at 100 Gnoss Concourse, Petaluma, CA 94952 
with reference to the following facts: 

 

A.​ Pursuant to a License Agreement between the Licensor and the Association of Waldorf Schools 

of North America (“AWSNA”), the Licensor maintains a license to use the mark "PUBLIC 

WALDORF" (the “Licensed Mark”) in relation to public educational services inspired by Waldorf 

Education, including the right to sublicense the Licensed Mark. 

B.​ Sublicensee is a public education institution committed to educating through the 

implementation of the Core Principles of Public Waldorf Education developed by the Licensor. It 

wishes to promote such commitment through the use of the Licensed Mark in relation to its 

public educational services. 

C.​ Sublicensee desires to obtain a license under the terms and conditions provided herein to use 

the Licensed Mark in providing its public educational services. The licensor is willing to grant a 

license to Sublicensee for the use of the Licensed Mark as part of the compound mark on the 

terms and conditions provided herein. 

 

THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1.​ Grant of License: For valuable consideration, and subject to the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, Licensor hereby grants to Sublicensee a non-exclusive license to use the Licensed 

Mark in connection with its operations as a public school inspired by and in accordance with the 

Core Principles of Public Waldorf Education in the territory of the United States and as provided 

in Section 5. No other use of the Licensed Mark is authorized hereunder, and nothing contained 

herein shall be construed as permitting any other use, or allowing any sublicensing of the 

Licensed Mark, or any variation thereof, by Sublicensee. 

 

1 
 

78



2.​ Term: The license granted herein shall commence on the Effective Date (as hereafter defined) 

and shall continue in perpetuity so long as Sublicensee complies with the provisions of this 

Agreement or unless sooner terminated as provided in this Agreement. 

 

3.​ License Fee: Sublicensee shall pay to Licensor the annual membership dues as determined by 

Licensor, which shall serve as the annual license fee. Failure to pay said annual membership dues 

shall constitute default under Section 9. 

 

4.​ Ownership of Mark: It is expressly understood and agreed between the parties that AWSNA 

retains full ownership of the Licensed Mark.  Sublicensee agrees that all use of the Licensed 

Mark by Sublicensee, whether before or after the Effective Date, shall insure to the benefit of 

AWSNA. Sublicensee further agrees that in the event of termination of this Agreement 

Sublicensee shall have no interest in the Licensed Mark whatsoever. Sublicensee further agrees 

that it will not, during the term of this Agreement, or thereafter, contest or attack the title of or 

any rights of Licensor or of AWSNA in and to the Licensed Mark, or voluntarily assist any third 

party in same. Sublicensee further acknowledges and agrees that there is substantial value and 

goodwill and secondary meaning associated with the Licensed Mark, and that all rights therein 

belong exclusively to AWSNA. Accordingly, Sublicensee will not use the Licensed Mark in any 

manner which may derogate or detract from the goodwill and reputation associated with the 

Licensed Mark or any other mark of AWSNA. This Section 4 shall survive termination of the 

Agreement. 

 

5.​ Labeling/Disclaimer: Sublicensee agrees to incorporate in a prominent manner the SM symbol in 

the first use of the mark in advertising or marketing material, consistent with common usage of 

the symbol, in connection with use by Sublicensee of the Licensed Mark.  If the Licensed Mark 

becomes registered, Sublicensee agrees to incorporate in a prominent manner the symbol R 

within a circle (®) in connection with any use by Sublicensee of the Licensed Mark. Sublicensee 

further agrees to incorporate the following disclaimer in connection with any use in advertising 

and marketing materials: 

 

"Public WaldorfSM is a service mark owned by the Association of Waldorf Schools of North 

America and used pursuant to a license.” 

 

6.​ Quality and Standards of Service:  

a.​ AWSNA and Licensor have agreed upon a general working definition of the “PUBLIC 

WALDORF” service mark by enumerating the ways in which Licensor and its members, 

including Sublicensee, relate to the Core Principles of Public Waldorf Education.  AWSNA, 

Licensor and Sublicensee desire to maintain the nature and quality of all services 

rendered by Sublicensee under the Licensed Mark.  Sublicensee agrees that all related 

advertising, promotional and other related uses of the Licensed Mark by Sublicensee 

shall substantially conform to the general working definition of Public WaldorfSM 

Education in accordance with the Core Principles of Public Waldorf Education.  

Sublicensee further agrees that it shall, throughout the term of this Agreement, 

2 
 

79



implement, practice, and otherwise follow the requirements defined in the Licensor 

Membership Handbook. Sublicensee shall cooperate with Licensor in facilitating 

Licensor’s control of the nature and quality of Sublicensee’s use of the Licensed Mark; 

and shall supply Licensor with specimens of all uses of the Licensed Mark by 

Sublicensee, upon Licensor’s request; all so that Licensor may monitor the nature and 

quality of Sublicensees use of the Marks in its advertising and marketing materials. 

 

b.​ Sublicensee agrees to comply with all applicable federal and state laws regarding the use 

of the Licensed Mark. 

 

c.​ Sublicensee agrees to comply with the following standards and requirements: 

i.​ The Licensed Mark shall be used only to promote educational services that 

reasonably comply with the Core Principles of Public Waldorf Education, which 

may be amended from time to time as determined by Licensor, in conjunction 

with AWSNA.  Further elaboration of Public Waldorf services provided by the 

Sublicensee must relate to an appropriate core principle(s) provided in the Core 

Principles of Public Waldorf Education. The Sublicensee can elaborate upon the 

Core Principles of Public Waldorf Education, but not modify, add, or delete from 

those principles without a prior written agreement between the Sublicensee 

and Licensor and AWSNA. 

ii.​ Sublicensee agrees to be in compliance with all Licensor requirements regarding 

use of the Marks as specified herein. 

iii.​ Sublicensee agrees to make reasonable accommodations to meet with the 

Licensor Membership Services to resolve to the Licensor’s reasonable 

satisfaction any issue raised by the Licensor or AWSNA concerning continued use 

of the Licensed Mark. 

iv.​ Sublicensee’s name must be unique from any existing AWSNA member school, 

at the time of Sublicensees acceptance as a member of Licensor and through 

and following any Sublicensee name change. 

 

7.​ Exclusivity: Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent or prohibit AWSNA , or Licensor, in 

their sole and absolute discretion, from granting other licenses for the use of the Licensed Mark. 

 

8.​ Infringement: Sublicensee agrees to notify Licensor in writing of any infringement or 

unauthorized use of the Marks which may come to Sublicensees attention. In the event that the 

Marks are infringed by a third party, the Licensor shall have the sole right to take any appropriate 

action, including litigation, on account of such third- party infringement. Sublicensee agrees to 

cooperate with the Licensor in connection with any such action or litigation. Licensor shall, 

however, be under no duty to Sublicensee whatsoever to take action against a third party for any 

such infringement. 

 

9.​ Default: In the event Licensor believes Sublicensee to be in default of any provision of this 

Agreement, Licensor shall provide notice in writing to Sublicensee identifying the provision of 

3 
 

80



this Agreement being violated and the specific acts creating the violation (each an “Event of 

Default”). Sublicensee shall have sixty (60) days within which to correct the Event of Default and 

provide written evidence to Licensor of any corrective action. In the event an Event of Default is 

not corrected within said 60-day period and evidence of corrective action provided to Licensor, 

then Licensor may terminate this Agreement forthwith. 

 

10.​Termination: This Agreement shall terminate and the license and all rights hereunder in and to 

the Licensed Mark shall revert to Licensor on the occurrence of any of the following: 

a.​ Sublicensee shall cease to meet the criteria for Licensor Full Membership according to 

the Licensor Membership Handbook, including a change in governance structure or 

leadership transition that does not meet the collaborative intent of Core Principle #6. 

b.​ Sublicensee shall cease to exist or shall be adjudicated bankrupt;  

c.​ Failure of Sublicensee to correct an Event of Default after notice as provided herein; 

and/or 

d.​ In the event that the License Agreement between Licensor and AWSNA terminates for 

any reason whatsoever. 

 

11.​Effect of Termination: Upon the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, 

Sublicensee shall discontinue the use of the Licensed Mark and shall no longer use or have the 

right to use the Licensed Mark, any variations thereof, or any word or figure similar thereto. 

 

12.​Relationship of Parties: It is the intention of the parties that this Agreement shall not create any 

partnership, joint venture or other agency relationship between either of AWSNA or Licensor 

and Sublicensee, nor shall this Agreement be construed as an assignment between either of 

AWSNA or Licensor and Sublicensee. 

 

13.​Assignment: Sublicensee shall not assign, sell, pledge, encumber, sublicense or otherwise 

transfer any of Sublicensee’s rights under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of 

Licensor, which Licensor may withhold in its absolute and sole discretion. Any purported 

assignment, sale, pledge, encumbrance, or transfer, without Licensor’s prior written consent 

shall be void. Licensor may assign its rights under this Agreement without Sublicensee’s consent. 

 

14.​Attorney’s Fees: In the event legal action is necessary to enforce or interpret any of the terms of 

this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and court 

costs. 

 

15.​Notices: All notices hereunder shall be made by courier, certified or registered mail, postage 

prepaid, addressed to the parties at the following addresses unless written notice of address 

change is given: 

 

LICENSOR: ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ SUBLICENSEE:   

Elizabeth Beaven, Executive Director​ ​ ​ Linda Delgado, Director 

Alliance for Public Waldorf Ed., Inc​ ​ ​ Live Oak Charter School 

4 
 

81



1000 Rock river Drive, Suite 218​​ ​ ​ 100 Gnoss Concourse,  
Folsom, CA 95630​ ​ ​ ​ ​ Petaluma, CA 94952 

16.​Binding on Successors: This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon 

the parties, their heirs, successors, and assigns. 

17.​Amendment/Modification: Any amendment, modification, or change to this Agreement must 

be in writing and executed by an authorized representative of both Licensor and Sublicensee. 

 

18.​Waiver: No waiver of any breach of any condition, covenant, or agreement contained in this 

Agreement shall constitute a continuing waiver or waiver of any subsequent breach of the same 

or any other condition, covenant, or agreement. Any waiver of the terms of this Agreement shall 

be in writing and signed by the waiving party. 

 

19.​Effective Date: The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be April 7th, 2025. 

 

20.​ Indemnification: Sublicensee shall indemnify AWSNA and Licensor and hold each of them 

harmless from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, damages, judgments, losses and 

expenses, including attorneys’ fees (whether incurred as the result of a third party claim or a 

claim to enforce this provision), that arise out of any claim, threat of litigation or litigation 

relating to any negligent or wrongful use of the Licensed Mark by Sublicensee. 

 

21.​Severability: If any term or provision hereof, or its application to person or circumstance, shall to 

any extent be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby, and each term or provision hereof shall be valid and enforced to the fullest 

extent permitted by law. 

 

22.​ Interpretation: This Agreement has been negotiated at arm’s length, with the participation of 

the parties and their counsel.  In the event of a dispute arising out of this Agreement, none of 

the Parties shall be considered to be the drafter of this Agreement or any provision hereof for 

the purpose of any statute, case law or rule of construction that would or might cause any 

provision to be construed against the drafter hereof. The headings in this Agreement are for 

convenience of reference only and shall not be construed as part of this Agreement or to limit or 

otherwise affect the meaning of this Agreement. 

 

23.​Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties 

relating to the subject matter herein and merges all prior negotiations, discussions and 

understandings between them relating thereto. 

 

 

5 
 

82



IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed on the date(s) set forth below. 

 

LICENSOR:​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ SUBLICENSEE: 

 

ALLIANCE FOR ​ ​ ​ ​ ​  ​ LIVE OAK CHARTER SCHOOL 

PUBLIC WALDORF EDUCATION​ ​   ​  

 

 

By:  _______________________________​ ​ By:   ____________________________ 

 

Name: Elizabeth Beaven   ​ ​ ​  ​ Name: Linda Delgado 

Title: Executive Director​​ ​ ​ ​ Title: Director  

 

Date: 04/07/2025      ​ ​  ​ ​ ​ Date:________________ 
​
​
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 
 

83



200-Hour Waldorf Teacher Training 
Program 

Overview 
The 200-Hour Waldorf Teacher Training Program is designed to equip educators with the 
foundational knowledge, pedagogical tools, and artistic skills necessary to effectively implement 
Waldorf education in a public school setting. This comprehensive training supports teachers in 
developing both a theoretical understanding and practical application of Waldorf principles, while 
ensuring alignment with public education standards. 

The program consists of: 

1.​ The Art of Teaching – A weeklong summer intensive focused on grade-level 
preparation, artistic engagement and MLL Training​
 

2.​ Five Day Long Training Sessions – School-year professional development, integrated 
into contracted hours. MLL Training embedded.​
 

3.​ Monthly Workshops – Ongoing deep dives into Waldorf pedagogy, classroom 
management, and artistic instruction.​
 

4.​ Capstone Project – A hands-on final project where teachers apply Waldorf methods in 
their classrooms.​
 

Note: Mentorship and coaching are not included in this budget and will be available as an 
additional, separately funded service. Should VVPW hire a Pedegogical Director, it is 
anticipated that the PD would provide the necessary mentorship for VVPW teachers, but 
mentorship for other teachers would need to be identified on a case-by case basis. 

Financial Sustainability & Tuition Model 
This program is structured to be financially self-sustaining, with costs covered through 
teacher tuition. 

●​ Petaluma City Schools will fund the tuition for all eligible Valley Vista Public Waldorf 
(VVPW) teachers.​
 

84

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1uD6kTA0E4OHPL-pWwxcx0Qr3ms8uPJ_OWcOutBdvvH0/edit?usp=sharing


●​ Additional teachers from Sonoma and Marin counties will be recruited to ensure full 
enrollment and financial viability.​
 

Cost Breakdown 

The total cost to run the two-year, 200-hour program is at least $76,0001 which covers: 

●​ Program Design & Implementation:  $20,000 
●​ Instructor Fees: $45,767 
●​ Course Materials & Supplies: $6,750 
●​ Fiscal Services: $3,483 

 

Cost Per Teacher (for 15 Participants): 

●​ $76,000÷ 15 teachers = $5,066 per teacher for the full two-year program.​
 

Mentoring & Coaching (Additional Cost, TBD) 

One-on-one mentorship and coaching will be available separately, with costs to be determined 
based on teacher needs and available funding. The current plan is to have VVPW Pedagogical 
Director mentor VVPW teachers. 

Role of the Foundation for Petaluma Public Waldorf 
The Foundation will play a key role in managing program finances, including: 

●​ Processing Payments: Facilitating payments to contractors and teachers.​
 

●​ Contract Management:​
 

○​ The program will be designed, managed, and evaluated by Allegra Pfiefer, an 
experienced Waldorf educator.​
 

○​ The Foundation will oversee her compensation and payments to additional 
instructors.​
 

●​ Tuition Collection & Financial Oversight: Ensuring tuition is collected and allocated 
appropriately to sustain the program.​
 

1 A detailed draft budget can be found here. 

85

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1tAdOnX8oCOUwZBz9C48v16YSHw0QneCVy4WmiL59rVU/edit?usp=sharing


 

 

86



APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

New Charter Implementation Plan Summary 

The objective of the New Charter Implementation Plan is to outline a structured process for 
bringing together the Live Oak and Valley Vista communities to launch a new Public Waldorf 
charter school as part of Petaluma City Schools. It focuses on key areas such as fostering 
collaboration between stakeholders, ensuring community engagement, and creating a 
comprehensive plan for site leadership, curriculum, and communication. The plan below does 
not include the work done with the district to create the new charter. Rather, the focus is on 
ensuring a smooth, inclusive launch of the new school while maintaining its commitment to 
Waldorf principles, educational excellence and serving the diverse needs of the community. 

Phase 1: Preparation and Engagement (Fall 2024)  

This phase focuses on building a strong foundation for the new charter school by fostering 
collaboration between the Live Oak (LO) and Valley Vista (VV) communities. Key activities 
include faculty visits, community events, and leadership meetings to establish alignment on the 
mission, vision, and operational framework. Communication efforts, such as sharing letters, 
FAQs, and hosting Q&A sessions, are prioritized to engage families and address concerns. 
What is outlined in Phase 1 does not include the drafting and submission of the MOU and 
Charter.  

Phase 2: Operational Planning (Spring 2025)  

In this phase, the focus shifts to detailed planning for the school’s governance, curriculum, and 
infrastructure. Parent and community committees actively contribute to implementation planning 
and parent education while recruitment efforts, such as campus tours and promotional 
materials, begin to attract new families. Resources are allocated to support bilingual and special 
education needs, and the leadership structure is solidified to ensure a smooth transition.  

Phase 3: Launch and Growth (2025-2026 School Year)  

This final phase encompasses the opening of the new school and sustaining its growth. Efforts 
include teacher training, continuous community engagement through events, and regular 
communication with families. The school’s progress is evaluated through stakeholder feedback, 
and adjustments are made to ensure that Waldorf principles and community needs remain at 
the forefront as the school grows and builds its waitlist. 

 

 

 

 

1 

87



APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

New Charter Implementation Plan Phase 1: Preparation and 
Engagement 

Milestone Date Key Actions 

Fostered Collaboration 
and Understanding 
Between Schools 

September 
2024 

●​ Facilitated cross-site visits for LO and VV 
faculty to build relationships and exchange 
ideas (9/10, 9/26).  

●​ Conducted a check-in meeting with PCS, VV, 
and LO leadership to align goals (9/26). 

Communicated Intent 
and Provided Clarity to 
VV Families 

September 
2024 

●​ Shared a letter announcing the intent to move 
forward with the charter (9/17).  

●​ Distributed an FAQ document to answer 
questions about the 25/26 school year (9/19). 

Engaged the VV 
Community 

September 
2024 

●​ Held a "Coffee with the Principal" event to 
listen to and address community concerns 
(9/20). 

Advanced 
Implementation 
Planning 

October 
2024 

●​ Held multiple implementation planning 
meetings with PCS, VV, and LO leadership 
(10/7, 10/9, 10/23).  

●​ Engaged VV and LO parent committees in 
planning sessions (10/1, 10/16). 

Engaged the 
Community, Generated 
Ownership and Built 
Trust 

October 
2024 

●​ Organized campus tours for VV caregivers at 
LO to promote transparency and inclusion 
(10/4, 10/22).  

●​ Held a parent engagement event for VV 
families to answer questions and build 
community (10/9).  

●​ Reviewed the charter in a joint VV and LOCS 
community meeting with over 90 community 
members participation. (10/28). 

2 

88



APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

Milestone Date Key Actions 

Promoted Cultural 
Connection and 
Integration 

October 
2024 

●​ VV invited LO families to their Dia de los 
Muertos event to celebrate and strengthen 
community ties, 125 LO members attended 
(10/31). 

Addressed Bilingual 
Needs 

October 
2024 

●​ Held a meeting with bilingual resource staff to 
ensure language support for families (10/21). 

●​ VV faculty and staff visit Alice Birney in 
Sacramento 

Maintained Community 
Engagement 

November 
2024 

●​ Hosted a "Coffee with the Principal" event at 
VV to keep families informed and connected 
(11/6). 

Continued 
Cross-School 
Relationship Building 

November 
2024 

●​ Conducted another VV caregiver tour of the 
LO campus to further integration efforts 
(11/19). 

Strengthened 
Communication with 
LO + VV Families 

December 
2024 

●​ Held a "Coffee with the Director" event at LO 
and "Coffee with the Principal" event at VV to 
foster transparency and address community 
concerns (12/12). 

 

 

 

 

 

3 

89



APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

New Charter Implementation Plan Phase 2: Operational Planning + Enrollment + 
Community Engagement 

Milestone Date Key Actions 

Naming of New 
School 

January- 
February 
2025 

●​ Engage the community in a process for 
naming the new school that honors its 
guiding principles—Child-Centered, 
Teacher-Led, and 
Community-Held—while involving both 
the Valley Vista and Live Oak 
Communities. The process will center 
creativity, inclusivity, and reverence for the 
school’s deeper purpose.  

Initial Staffing Plan 
January 
2025 

●​ Finalize the organizational chart and 
staffing needs. 

●​ Begin recruiting key leadership roles 
depending on enrollment (Principal, 
Director of Education). 

Hiring Principal / 
Director 

February 
2025 

●​ Conduct interviews and finalize hiring of 
the school principal. 

●​ Principal begins to lead the planning 
process for curriculum, staffing, and 
outreach. 

Community 
Outreach & 
Enrollment 

January – 
March 
2025 

●​ Begin student recruitment through tours, 
community events, online outreach, and 
information sessions. 

●​ Open enrollment period for families. 
●​ Priority registration for early enrollment. 

Relationship 
building between VV 
+ LO students/ staff/ 
families 

February - 
April 2025 

●​ Organize a field day between schools 
where students meet each other in a fun 
and welcoming environment. 

●​ Launch "pen pals" between grades 
●​ Staff/faculty visits to get to know students. 
●​ Schools host each other for spring events: 

LO Spring Faire, VV Dia de Niño. 
●​ Host community picnics + class meet-ups. 

4 

90

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1Ma03FcBAxa0TY-L4HC-kLQ24cJH0qVdqFifN-wQoVQ0/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1Ma03FcBAxa0TY-L4HC-kLQ24cJH0qVdqFifN-wQoVQ0/edit?usp=sharing


APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

Milestone Date Key Actions 

Public Waldorf 
Education 

January - 
May 2025 

●​ Host a monthly educational series on Public 
Waldorf education that informs and equips 
families 

LOCS Foundation 
Planning 

January - 
March 
2025 

●​ Identify the capacities required within the 
foundation in order to support the needs of 
a dependent charter. 

●​ Restructure LOCS foundation as needed. 
 

Facility 
Renovations/Preparation 

January– 
July 2025 

●​ Work with district to finalize renovations and 
setup of the school building. 

●​ Inventory existing furniture and classrooms 
●​ Ensure classrooms are designed with 

Waldorf aesthetics and natural materials. 
●​ Install furniture, supplies, and resources. 

Curriculum Development February 
– April 
2025 

●​ Finalize the specialty classes, and 
classroom integration model across grades. 

Staff Recruitment February 
– May 
2025 

●​ Secure LOIs from existing teaching faculty 
at PCS and Live Oak 

●​ Depending on enrollment, begin hiring 
teachers and staff, prioritizing those with 
Waldorf training or experience. 

●​ Begin recruitment for admin/staff(festival 
coordinator, aides, custodians, etc.). 

Staff Onboarding and 
Training 

May – 
July 2025 

●​ Provide professional development for 
teachers and staff on Waldorf education, 
MLL instruction, and school policies. 

●​ Hold training sessions for teachers and staff 
on classroom setup, behavior management, 
and special education services. 

Family & Community 
Engagement 

April – 
July 2025 

●​ Establish the Charter Advisory Council and 
the Family Council ensuring equal 
representation from the VV + LO 
communities. 

●​ Hold family orientations and open houses to 
introduce parents to the curriculum, school 
environment, and policies. 

5 

91



APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

Milestone Date Key Actions 

Finalize School Budget June 2025 
●​ Work with the district to finalize the first-year 

budget, including staff salaries, operational 
costs, and fundraising projections. 

Enrollment Finalization June 2025 
●​ Close enrollment window and confirm 

student enrollment numbers. 
●​ Conduct a lottery if necessary, notify 

families of acceptance or waitlist status. 

Moving  June 2025 
●​ Move Live Oak inventory to Valley Vista 

campus. 
●​ Live Oak fully move out of Fairgrounds 

Final Teacher Training & 
Preparation 

July – 
August 
2025 

●​ Conduct final professional development 
sessions and complete lesson plans. 

●​ Teachers set up classrooms and prepare 
materials for the first weeks of school. 

School Opening August 
2025 

●​ First day of school with a welcoming 
ceremony for students and families. 

●​ Caregiver Orientation and Open House 
●​ Begin instruction with an emphasis on 

integrating the Waldorf rhythm and routines. 

 

New Charter Implementation Plan Phase 3: Launch, Cultivating a 
Community of Belonging and Sustained Development 

Milestone Date Key Actions 

Professional 
Development 

8/7/2025 ●​ Professional Development and Teacher 
Workdays begin 

6 

92



APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

School Opening 
Events 

8/13/2025 ●​ Opening ceremony for students and families.- 
Week of Welcome (Jump Start) 

●​ Begin first week of instruction, focusing on 
establishing classroom rhythms and introducing 
students to core subjects. 

Milestone Date Key Actions 

Parent-Teacher 
Orientation 

August 2025 ●​ Hold orientation meetings with parents to discuss 
school policies, classroom expectations, and the 
Waldorf approach. 

●​ Engage families in volunteer opportunities 
through the Family Guild. 

Classroom Guild August 2025 ●​ Launch the Classroom Guild - two parents from 
each grade: representative of student population 

Baseline Student 
Assessments 

September 
2025 

●​ Conduct baseline assessments to measure 
students’ initial academic, social, and emotional 
development. 

●​ Begin building student portfolios for holistic 
evaluation. 

Establish ELAC September 
2025 

●​ Election of ELAC Leadership positions and 
recruitment of members 

Jog-A-Thon October 
2025 

●​ Foundation to host 1st school wide fundraiser 

Dia de los Muertos November 
2025 

●​ Host community wide celebration of Dia de los 
Muertos, incorporate into the curriculum 

Parent-Teacher 
Conferences 

November 
2025 

●​ Conduct the first round of parent-teacher 
conferences to discuss student progress and 
development. 

Winter Assembly, 
Tamale Sale & Craft 
Festival 

December 
2025 

●​ Organize a Winter Festival and Tamale Sale 
celebrating seasonal traditions and cultural 
diversity. Include student performances, 
Handwork displays, and parent involvement in 
the event. 

7 

93



APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

Mid-Year 
Assessments & 
Reviews 

January 
2026 

●​ Conduct mid-year assessments to evaluate 
student progress in core subjects, 
social-emotional growth, and practical skills 
(Handwork, Gardening, etc.). 

●​ Hold a staff review to identify areas for 
improvement and professional development 
needs. 

Milestone Date Key Actions 

Mid-Year 
Teacher 
Evaluations 

March 2026 ●​ Conduct formal teacher evaluations based on 
classroom observations and student outcomes. 

●​ Provide feedback and support for professional 
growth. 

Spring Festival, 
Dia de Niño & 
Open House 

April 2026 ●​ Organize the Spring Festival, featuring student 
performances, artwork, and exhibits of student 
projects (e.g., Handwork creations, Gardening 
work, etc.).  

●​ Organize and Celebrate Dia de Niño- Include 
community participation and fundraising 
opportunities. 

Final 
Assessments & 
Student 
Presentations 

May 2026 ●​ Conduct end-of-year assessments to evaluate 
student learning across all subjects. 

●​ Students present final projects (e.g., 
interdisciplinary work, Handwork, performances) 
to parents and peers. 

Teacher 
Professional 
Development 
Day 

June 2026 ●​ Hold a staff reflection and planning day to review 
successes and challenges from the first year. 

●​ Begin strategic planning for the next school year, 
including curriculum adjustments and goals. 

End-of-Year 
Celebrations & 
Grade 
Transitions 

June 2026 ●​ Host end-of-year celebrations, including 
ceremonies for students transitioning to the next 
grade.  

●​ Hold a reflection meeting with families to gather 
feedback on the school’s first year. 

 

8 

94



APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Enrollment Assumptions 

* The new students we need to recruit for the '25/'26 schools year is calculated based on 
ensuring space to 100% of the current families at LO + VV . In other words, we take targeted 
enrollment minus current LO+VV enrollment (i.e. this year's 4th grade #s are next years 5th 
grade projections). 

9 

95



APPENDIX G - New Charter Implementation Plan 

 
** New families after year one are calculated based on previous years projections. 

 
 

 

 

10 

96


	1004: 
	1007: 
	1010: 94952
	1013: 
	1017 CB: Off
	1020: 
	1023 CB: Off
	1026 CB: Off
	1027 CB: Off
	1028 CB: Off
	1029 CB: Yes
	1032: 
	1036: 
	2001: 232167
	2002: 37463
	2003: 
	2004: 
	2005: 
	2006: 
	2007: 
	2008: 269630
	2009: 
	2010: 
	2011: 200461
	2012: 1821450
	2013: 
	2014: 
	2015: 169444
	2016: 2838
	2017: 1396867
	2018: 3591060
	2019: 1200293
	2020: 1079874
	2021: 332971
	2022: 383753
	2023: 
	2024: 
	2025: 
	2026: 
	2027: 
	2028: 
	2029: 
	2030: 
	2031: 
	2032: 
	2033: 
	2034: 
	2035: 
	2036: 
	2037: 52114
	2038: 52114
	2039: 46393
	2040: 5721
	2041: 49231
	2042: 2883
	2043: 
	2044: 
	2045: 52268
	2046: 351606
	2047: 1591253
	2048: 1818116
	2049: 423360
	2050: 618886
	2051: 
	2052: 
	2053: 


